
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Tuesday, September 6, 2016 
 

7:00 PM 
 
 

1. Call to Order. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. Roll Call. 
 

4. Announcements, Acknowledgments and Communications and Reports. 
 

Presentation from Mount Clemens Community Coalition to Bill Mangan. 
 
Presentation from the Clinton River Watershed Council. 

 
5. Adoption of Agenda. 

 
6. Public Participation. 

 
7. Administrative   Response   to   Issues   or   Questions   Raised   During   Previous 

Meetings. 
 

8. Approval of Minutes. 
 

9. General Business. 
 

9-A – Request Approval of a Resolution Adopting the Proposed Master Plan 
Update.  (Tabled from City Commission meeting of August 15, 2016) 

 
9-B – Approve Purchases and Payment of Invoices. 

 

    
 
 

1



10. Consent Agenda. 
 

11. City Manager’s Report. 
 

12. Commissioners’ Comments. 
 

13. Executive Session 
 
13-A - To Discuss Negotiations Regarding Collective Bargaining Agreements. 
 

14. General Business (continued). 
 
14-A - Request Approval of the July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2018 GELC Clerical Collective 
Bargaining Agreement. 
 
14-B - Request Approval of the July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2018 DPW Collective 
Bargaining Agreement. 
 
14-C - Request Approval of the July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2018 Crew Leaders Collective 
Bargaining Agreement. 

 
15. Adjournment. 

 
The City of Mount Clemens will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and 
services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audiotapes of printed materials 
being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing 
upon one week-notice to the City of Mount Clemens. Individuals with disabilities 
requiring auxiliary aids should contact the City of Mount Clemens by writing or 
calling the following: 

 
City Clerk’s Office One 

Crocker Boulevard 
Mount Clemens, Michigan 48043 

586.469.6818, Extension 310 
911 - TDD 

 

2



August 15, 2016 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 

County of Macomb       August 15, 2016 

State of Michigan       Commission Chambers  

 

A regular meeting of the Mount Clemens City Commission was held on Monday, August 15, 

2016, at 7:00 p.m.  The meeting was held in the Commission Chambers of the Municipal 

Building, One Crocker Boulevard, Mount Clemens, Michigan.  Present at this meeting were 

Commissioners Roger Bunton, Bill “Sonny” Ford, Lois Hill, Laura Kropp and Denise Mentzer. 

Mayor Barb Dempsey and Commissioner Ron Campbell were absent.  Also in attendance were 

Lisa Borgacz, Interim City Manager/City Clerk; Michael Murray, City Attorney; and Cathleen 

Martin, Deputy City Clerk.  

 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

Commissioner Mentzer made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton to excuse Mayor 

Dempsey and Commissioner Campbell from the meeting. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, COMMUNICATIONS AND 

REPORTS, WERE PRESENTED AND ADDRESSED, ITEM 4. 

 

PRESENTATION AND SWEARING-IN OF PROMOTIONAL AND NEW FIRE 

DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL. 

 

The following firefighters were sworn-in by Interim City Manager/City Clerk Lisa Borgacz: 

 

1. Richard DeCaussin - Promoted from Lieutenant to Captain 

2. Nicholas Candela - Promoted from Firefighter to Lieutenant 

3. Alex Zachow - New Firefighter 

 

The meeting went into recess at 7:14 p.m. and reconvened at 7:18 p.m. 

 

THE ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 5. 

 

Commissioner Bunton made a motion, supported by Commissioner Kropp, to amend the agenda 

as follows: 

 

General Business Item 9-A – Approval of a Resolution Adopting the Master Plan 

Update was tabled until the next regular City Commission meeting of Tuesday, 

September 6, 2016.   

 

The vote on the motion was: 

 

Ayes:  Campbell, Ford, Hill, Kropp 

Nays:  Mentzer 

 

The motion passed. 

 

3



August 15, 2016 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION WAS CONDUCTED, ITEM 6. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSE TO ISSUES OR QUESTIONS RAISED DURING 

PREVIOUS MEETINGS WERE RECEIVED, ITEM 7. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 8. 

 

Commissioner Bunton made a motion, supported by Commissioner Kropp, to approve the 

minutes of the Regular meeting of July 18, 2016, as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PROPOSED MASTER PLAN 

UPDATE, ITEM 9-A. 

 

Item 9-A was tabled until the next regular City Commission Meeting of September 6, 2016. 

 

APPROVAL OF PURCHASES AND THE PAYMENT OF INVOICES WERE 

CONSIDERED, ITEM 9-B. 

 

Commissioner Kropp made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton to approve purchases 

and payment of invoices as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

THE CONSENT AGENDA WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 10. 

 

Commissioner Mentzer made a motion, supported by Commissioner Bunton to approve the 

consent agenda as presented: 

 

In Item 10-A, a request by New Generation Church to hold a Neighborhood Appreciation Day at 

Wilson Park on Saturday, August 27, 2016 from 12:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m., was approved. 

 

In Item 10-B, a request by Rock Church to hold a community block party barbeque at Clemens 

Park on Saturday, September 10, 2016 from 12:00 p.m. until 4:00 p.m., was approved. 

 

In Item 10-C, a request to approve the Macomb County Fallen Heroes Memorial on Sunday, 

September 11, 2016 from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. and the associated road closure of N. Main 

Street between Market and Cass, was approved. 

 

In Item 10-D, a request to hold the 25th Annual Anton Art Center ArtParty on Thursday, 

September 15, 2016 from 6:00 p.m. until 9:00 p.m., and to allow the closure of Macomb Place 

between SB Gratiot Avenue and Pine Street from 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, September 14, 2016 

through 6:00 a.m. on Friday, September 16, 2016, was approved. 

 

In Item 10-E, a request to conduct the Bath City Run/Walk 5K in Memory of Chris Voiers on 

September 25, 2016 from 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m., was approved. 

 

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

THE CITY MANAGER’S REPORT WAS GIVEN, ITEM 11. 

 

4



August 15, 2016 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS WERE RECEIVED, ITEM 12 

 

Commissioner Bunton made a motion, supported by Commissioner Kropp, to adjourn the 

meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

_________________________________________ 

Barb Dempsey, Mayor 

 

_________________________________________ 

Cathleen Martin, Deputy City Clerk 

5



August 22, 2016 

CITY COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING 

 

County of Macomb       August 22, 2016 

State of Michigan       Commission Chambers  

 

A special meeting of the Mount Clemens City Commission was held on Monday, August 22, 2016, 

at 5:30 p.m.  The meeting was held in the Commission Chambers of the Municipal Building, One 

Crocker Boulevard, Mount Clemens, Michigan.  Present at this meeting were Commissioners 

Ronald Campbell, Bill “Sonny” Ford, Lois Hill, Laura Kropp and Denise Mentzer.  Mayor Barb 

Dempsey and Commissioner Roger Bunton was absent.  Also in attendance were Lisa Borgacz, 

Interim City Manager and Michael Murray, City Attorney. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Commissioner Mentzer made a motion, supported by Commissioner Kropp to excuse Mayor 

Dempsey and Commissioner Bunton from the meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

THE ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 4. 

 

Commissioner Kropp made a motion, supported by Commissioner Campbell, to approve the 

agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION WAS CONDUCTED, ITEM 5. 

 

DISCUSSION OF CITY MANAGER SEARCH WITH THE MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL 

LEAGUE WAS CONSIDERED, ITEM 6. 

 

Joyce Parker, MML Search Consultant, was present to discuss the search criteria for the City 

Manager position. 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS WERE RECEIVED, ITEM 7. 

 

Commissioner Kropp made a motion, supported by Commissioner Campbell to adjourn the 

meeting. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:18 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Lois Hill, City Commissioner 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Lisa Borgacz, Interim City Manager/City Clerk  

6



EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – September 6, 2016 
 

Agenda Item No. 9-A 
 
Approval of a Resolution Adopting the Proposed Master Plan Update 
 
At its August 1, 2016 meeting the Mount Clemens City Commission reserved the right to 
be the final approval authority of the Master Plan Update.  After a public hearing held 
August 3, 2016, the Mount Clemens Planning Commission recommended that the Mount 
Clemens City Commission adopt the proposed Master Plan Update by resolution.  The 
attached resolution, if approved, is the final step in approving the Master Plan Update. 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Brian L. Tingley 

Community Development Director. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve the Resolution Adopting the Master Plan 

Update. 

7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

One Crocker Boulevard  
Mount Clemens, Michigan 48043  

Phone: 586-468-6818 • Fax: 586-469-7695 
www.cityofmountclemens.com 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  August 19, 2016   

TO:  Honorable Mayor Dempsey and City Commissioners  

FROM:  Brian L. Tingley, Community Development Director 

RE:  Master Plan Update – Final Adoption  

 
The Planning Commission reviewed the Draft Master Plan Update in May 2016 and after discussion directed staff to 
submit the draft to the City Commission for review and distribution.  At its 6/6/16 meeting the City Commission 
reviewed and released the Draft Master Plan Update for distribution to Neighboring Jurisdictions, Public Utilities and 
Transportation Agencies and the General Public for a required 42-day comment period.  During this time, the draft has 
also been available on the City website, with instruction on how to submit comments via the website.  Four comments 
were received via the website and are included with this memorandum. 
 
The City Commission also discussed the draft at a work session meeting on 7/18/16. 
 
The following changes were made based on Planning Commission and City Commission review: 

• Additional Corridor Design Guideline language – Page 133 
• Addition of Redevelopment Principles for City Hall property – Page 142 
• Additional Images and Design Concepts for 2-Way Macomb Place – Page 144 
• Implementation – Z3 – Rezone City Hall property to CB to facilitate potential development.  This has been 

removed.  It was felt that a rezoning should not occur until a developer is in place, if that were to occur. 
 

Redevelopment of the City Hall property (Page 142) is listed as a potential way to increase the City’s tax base.  However, 
in the event the City chose to redevelop the site, the Master Plan Update also lists several Redevelopment Principles, 
including: 

• Retain public access to the river 
• Explore retaining municipal use on site vs. relocating elsewhere in town 
• Redevelopment should not detract from the necessary effort to reinvigorate downtown. 

 
The Master Plan Update does not say that the City Hall property should be sold and/or redeveloped.  It does provide a 
framework and redevelopment principles in the event that the City Commission chose this option.  In addition, regarding 
the development of publicly-owned property, the recently adopted Public Participation Plan states that “For projects of 
great significance, the City or DDA may wish to gather the opinion of the community with regard to the vision, 
redevelopment scale and character, and uses of the parcels under consideration.”  This is a strategy that would be 
heavily recommended by staff. 
 

8

http://www.cityofmountclemens.com/


CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 
MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AN UPDATE TO THE 2010 MASTER PLAN 
 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Commission of the City of Mount Clemens, Macomb County, Michigan, 
held in said City on Tuesday, September 6, at 7:00 p.m., there were: 
 
PRESENT:    
 
ABSENT:   
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, P.A. 110 of 2006, states that the provisions of a municipal  
zoning ordinance shall be based upon a plan designed to promote the public health, safety, and general  
welfare, to encourage the use of lands in accordance with their character and adaptability, and limit the  
improper use of land; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, P.A. 33 of 2008 (“Planning Act”) requires the Planning 
Comssion to make and adopt a Master Plan as a guide for the development of a municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mount Clemens Planning Commission has prepared a Master Plan  
Update (“Update”), which amends the 2010 Master Plan and creates an Economic Development and 
Marketing Plan, a Redevelopment Plan, a Downtown Plan, and a revised Implementation Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Sec. 41 (1) of the Planning Act, the City Commission approved the draft version of  
the Update at its June 6, 2016 regular meeting, and authorized the document to be released for  
distribution to neighboring jurisdictions for comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with the Planning Act, the Planning Commission held a  
public hearing on August 3, 2016 on the proposed Update, for the purpose of presenting the  
proposed Update to the citizens of the City and receiving public comments and recommendations  
regarding the Update; and 
  
WHEREAS, in the process of completing the Update, the Planning Commission duly considered the  
public comments received,  
 
1.      That the City of Mount Clemens City Commission hereby approves and adopts the Master 

Plan Update, dated August 3, 2016. 
 
2.      That the City of Mount Clemens Planning Commission is hereby directed to submit copies of the adopted 

update to adjacent communities and other entities as required by the Planning Act. 
 
3.      That the City of Mount Clemens City Commission hereby expresses its appreciation for         
   the efforts of all those involved in preparing the Update. 
 
The above resolution was offered by ____________________________________ 
and supported by _____________________________________, with the vote being as follows: 
 
 
YES:   
 

9



 
 
 
 
  
 
City of Mount Clemens 
2016 Redevelopment Update 
 

This amendment to the 2010 Mount Clemens Master Plan includes the following chapters, which 
supplement that plan: 

Economic Development and Marketing Plan ....................................................................... 107 

Redevelopment Strategy  ........................................................................................... 125 

Downtown Plan ........................................................................................................... 135 

Implementation (replaces pages 107-119 of 2010 Plan) ...................................................... 149 

 

The purpose of this update is to 

 Create clear strategies to attract investment, build tax base and create jobs.  

 Concentrate on key redevelopment sites. 

 Explore how to better connect business and development interests with local redevelopment 
sites. 

 Describe steps to take to enhance community image and brand to stimulate redevelopment 
interest.  

 Identify new opportunities to market Mount Clemens. 

 Refresh the Master Plan for consistency with other City strategic planning efforts. 

 Meet the requirements to be Redevelopment Ready certified by the MEDC. 

 

Assistance provided by LSL Planning, Poggemeyer Design Group, and SmithGroupJJR. 

10



 

11



Economic Development & 
Marketing Plan 

A. Introduction 
Cities compete with each other in direct and subtle ways.  Directly, they 
compete to attract outside investment – working to influence private decisions 
that will help bring new facilities or projects to town.  In more subtle and 
sustained ways, communities compete to create desirable places that 
encourage local and external interests to invest and reinvest.  For obvious 
reasons, communities with a rich mix of desirable urban attributes provide 
compelling reasons for people to become vested partners in a community’s 
future.  

Competition between communities is especially strong in southeast Michigan 
where those considering where to live and where to make business investments 
have dozens of choices.  This intensifies the need for clear and actionable 
strategies that will help distinguish Mount Clemens from other communities. This 
Economic Development and Marketing Plan for Mount Clemens takes an 
honest look at local attributes and conditions, is based on steps to feel the 
pulse of trends, and local attitudes and reframes an economic development 
vision and strategy going forward.   

This recalibration of an economic development vision and strategy recognizes 
that the City of Mount Clemens is now taking steps to become certified as a 
Redevelopment Ready Community ® (RRC) through the Michigan Economic 
Development Corporation (MEDC) at the time of this update.  One important 
benchmark established by the MEDC’s RRC program is that a community 
should go far beyond simply hoping for a strong and growing local economy 
and instead, rely on clear strategies that describe how they intend to attract 
investment, build tax base and create jobs.  This Chapter tracks closely with 
direction provided by the MEDC that defines the essential elements of an 
economic development strategy with clear linkages to other relevant community 
planning efforts.   The MEDC framework was then tailored based on factors, 
attitudes, and market trends in the city. 

Since the City can only indirectly enhance and support economic 
development, an effective strategy is dependent upon a partnership with the 
private sector.  Private investment creates tax base and jobs. The decision to 
invest or not invest in a development or real estate project rests with individuals 
or organizations who must weigh potential risk and return on investment.  

Recent Studies 

 Mount Clemens Strategic 
Plan (July 2015)  

12



Emotional attachment to a community can certainly influence a decision to 
reinvest in a business, start a new local business, or otherwise invest in a local 
project.  However, ultimately the business case for community reinvestment 
projects must be strong enough to reach a convincing level.  That said, 
especially to obtain financing, generally more vibrant communities recognize 
the business case for community investment and reinvestment in three primary 
ways:   

1. Showcase and draw attention to opportunity (Marketing, Branding, 
information on sites, success stories, etc.).   

2. Remove or reduce uncertainty and risk that can be a barrier to private 
investment (Regulatory and Administrative Barriers).     

3. Support private actions for new investment (Incentives, Public 
Infrastructure Support, Provision of Public Amenities, Providing 
Redevelopment-Ready Sites, etc.)     

The specifics within each of the three areas is the essence of the Economic 
Development Strategy that needs to be redefined and directly associated with 
updated planning polices and proposed projects found elsewhere in this 
Master Plan.   Like the Master Plan itself, local economic development strategy 
development and execution is an ongoing process that builds on insights from 
past efforts.  In Mount Clemens, preceding steps that are foundational to this 
updated Economic Development Strategy are described herein.   

Three key parts of the Mount Clemens Economic Development Strategy are 
listed below and more fully described in the following material:      

Summarizing Essential 
Background Information (a 

candid look at local 
attributes and conditions).

Identification of Issues and 
Perceptions (recent steps to 

feel the pulse of local 
attitudes).  

Articulating the Economic 
Development Vision and 

Strategy.  This includes: 1) 
Showcase opportunity, 2) 

Remove or reduce 
uncertainty and risk and 
3) Identification of future 
public actions that will 
support and encourage 

private investment). 

Economic 
Development 

Strategy

13



Key Takeaways 

 Shrinking household sizes 
and limited room for new 
construction has been a 
key reason why the City 
has declined in 
population.   

 If the 1960’s household 
size had remained 
steady- Mount Clemens 
would have grown to be 
a city of nearly 25,000 
people today.     

B. Summarizing Essential Background Information 
To take stock of existing conditions, the following background information is 
provided.  This is the key information that succinctly identifies factual 
considerations that help frame issues confronting the City to help draw attention 
to the need for an actionable economic development strategy.    

Population 
 SEMCOG estimates that the population of Mount Clemens is 16,501 – 

which is up about 200 people compared with the 2010 census.  
However, long-term, SEMCOG projections currently point toward a 
decline in residents due to a general aging of the population and lower 
birth rates.  

 The social makeup of Mount Clemens has changed over the past fifty 
years. A “traditional family” with two parents and two children is no longer 
the norm. Empty nesters, single professionals and couples waiting longer to 
have children will fill the neighborhoods once designed for a different 
population.  (2010 Master Plan, Page 7). 

 The population of Mount Clemens peaked in the 1960’s at more than 
21,000 and has declined since to about 16,501 now.  

 Part of the reason for population decline in the last 50 years is due to the 
fact that the City has reached “build-out” (meaning there is little 
undeveloped property in the city).  At the same time, residential household 
sizes have declined significantly.  There are just 2.1 persons per 
household in Mount Clemens (which is far less than the average for both 
Detroit Metro and the State of Michigan – 2.6 and 2.5 respectively).  
Quite simply, fewer residents in each household and little change in the 
number of housing units results in population decline.  

 The number of housing units increased only modestly since the “population 
peak” of 1960 (from 6,179 units to more than 7,000 units today).  
However, this increase is far less than enough to compensate for the fact 
that each housing units has far fewer persons living in them.   If the 1960’s 
household size had remained steady- Mount Clemens would be a city of 
nearly 25,000 people today.   

Workforce 
 Attracting and retaining an educated workforce is fundamental to a 

community’s economic success.  A key benchmark is the percent of 
residents (25 or older) with Bachelor’s degrees. In Mount Clemens, the 
percentage is just over 18% which if only about 2/3 of the rate state-wide 
and across the metro area (26% and 28% respectively).  Clearly, the City 
is challenged to retrain and attract educated workers.   

This section is a 
snapshot of the trends 
in Mount Clemens at 
the time this Master 
Plan was amended 
(2016). This plan 
identifies some short-
term actions and some 
policies and programs 
to implement over 
time. 

14



 According to SEMCOG, The three largest single employers are the 
McLaren Health Care Corporation, Macomb County Government, and 
Axalta Coating Systems. 

Tax base 
 The primarily measure of local tax base is Assessed Valuation.   According 

to the Michigan Department of Treasury State Tax Commission, the total 
2016 Assessed Valuation was $ 96,014,513.  This is a 15% drop from 
the Assessed Valuation of $112,581,087 reported in 2010 and a 25% 
percent drop from the Assessed Valuation of $128,562,800 reported in 
2008.  As in nearly all other communities, the deep recession drove local 
property values down in the later part of the last decade and early years 
of this decade.  In Mount Clemens, the low point was 2013, when the 
Assessed Valuation fell to $85,772,383.  However, since then Assessed 
Valuations have shown a steady and sustained trajectory upward.   Other 
evidence of a strengthening real estate market and increasing property 
values have been reported in the media. Articles such as one published by 
the Macomb Daily titled “Macomb County housing market on the 
upswing” (1-30-16) point to evidence of falling numbers of foreclosures, 
more home sales, rising building permits and fewer sheriff sales in 
Macomb County.          

 Growing the local tax base is more challenging in a community that is the 
county seat since a large amount of land is publically-owned and tax 
exempt.  This is especially true in and near downtown where property 
values per square foot should be the highest.                    

Other  
 The two significant employment centers in Mount Clemens include the 

downtown area (government offices, healthcare) and the industrial corridor 
between Groesbeck Highway and the active railroad tracks to the east.  

 As noted, Mount Clemens is largely built-out, and for the most part, 
opportunities for development are limited to redevelopment of underutilized 
and vacant buildings (particularly in and near downtown). Recognition of 
this, led Macomb County and municipal leaders to organize an Investor 
Summit involving more than two dozen properties in the downtown area.  
This event was held in July 2015 and it was well attended.   Subsequent 
feedback strongly suggests that this event was regarded as a successful 
effort that helped acquaint potential investors with redevelopment and 
reuse opportunities.           

 

Key Takeaways 

 For the most part, 
opportunities for 
development are 
limited to 
redevelopment of 
underutilized and 
vacant buildings 
(particularly in and 
near downtown).  

15



C. Identification of Issues and Perceptions 
Two recent steps were taken that help describe the current assessment of local 
economic development issues and perceptions.  Both involve efforts to gauge 
attitudes among key community leaders.  The first effort was a SWOT Analysis 
generated by elected officials.  The second effort was a series of interviews / 
small focus group meetings with a good cross-section of business and 
community leaders.   Both efforts are regarded as being foundational to this 
new economic development strategy.     

SWOT Analysis  
In the spring of 2015, the Mayor and City Commission undertook a SWOT 
Exercise.   A SWOT exercise systematically considers Strengths, Weaknesses, 
Opportunities and Threats (SWOT).  In this case, the SWOT analysis was 
focused on the City and the results include the following:   

  

Strengths Weaknesses 
1. Water (waterfront, water plant, water taste) 
2. Housing 
3. City (small, cool, trees) 
4. Services (garbage, safety) 
5. Historic 
6. Museum 
7. Property 
8. Diversity 

1. County relationship 
2. Financial status 
3. Low homeownership 
4. Infrastructure 
5. Business development 
6. Staff shortage, low morale 
7. Schools – perception and MEAP scores 

 

16



Interviews / Small Focus Group Meetings 
In November 2015, consultants and municipal staff conducted a series of 
interviews/focus group sessions with key community leaders in order to obtain 
more insights into economic development challenges and opportunities.  About 
15 community leaders participated, each representing various community 
interests and voices. This step in the process allowed participants to express 
candid perspectives on existing conditions, challenges and economic 
development needs.  Careful notes were taken and have been organized into 
thematic groups of thoughts and ideas.  In most cases, the origins of 
recommended action steps can be traced back to conversations.  Often, 
insights and comments expressed by several participants were strikingly similar 
and therefore regarded as being more significant and described below.      

Pulse of Development Trends 

Key Takeaways 

 Some suggest that 
property owners are 
reluctant to move 
forward unless 
someone else takes a 
bold step forward 
and helps to “light a 
development spark.”   

 
 

Opportunities Threats 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l  Leverage the city’s water/sewer capacity to provide 

these essential services to neighboring communities. 
 

 Decline in state revenue-sharing 
 Further acquisition of property 

by non-taxable entities 
 Reductions in water sales 

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

 Riverfront development – leverage the city owned 
riverfront property currently occupied by City hall, the 
Fire department, and a large underutilized parking lot. 

 Fill the “blank canvas” provided by downtown 
vacancy. 

 Expand the Farmers’ market, building a greater sense 
of place. 

 Utilize hospitals as catalyst for growth, expansion 
 Encourage Oakland University expansion. 
 Reinvigorate mineral baths industry. 
 Market the City’s strengths. 
 Explore possible redevelopment of Selfridge as a 

commercial airport. 

 Loss of large businesses 
 Lack of ambitious property 

owners 
 Greater economic environment 

and climate 
 Potential Selfridge shutdown 
 Infrastructure deterioration 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t /

 
Q

ua
lity

 o
f L

ife
 

 Maximize the potential of a city that is ready for 
reinvention. 

 Further develop community pride and participation. 
 Increase and enhance first-time homebuyer and 

Millennial-friendly amenities. 
 Maximize downtown lofts, increasing marketing and 

further renovations. 

 Apportionment of school district 
 State moving probation officers 

downtown 
 Increased blight 
 

 

17



Conversations with participants yielded many perspectives about existing 
conditions in Mount Clemens, and some insights were obtained from those 
with knowledge of both long-term and recent trends.  Those with perspectives 
spanning many years felt that the recent economic downturn hit Mount 
Clemens hard and the rebound has been slow (at least compared with nearby 
communities).  One person with an especially long historical perspective 
identified various cycles of vitality over the years, but now sees a low point.  
Others see signs of pickup, but also draw attention to multiple properties that 
are either fully vacant or far underutilized.   

There is a belief that in some cases, property owners are holding out for higher 
real estate prices - speculating that things will improve soon.   These were 
largely anecdotal perspectives, but they were shared by several participants 
who see some holding on to property with the expectation that property values 
will rise as economic conditions improve.  Some suggest that property owners 
are reluctant to move forward unless someone else takes a bold step forward 
and helps to “light a development spark.”  It is also recognized that the high 
cost of building rehabilitation discourages property owners from taking on 
larger projects and risking capital.   

Most people were pleased with the effort to hold the Investor Summit in July 
2015 as it helped showcase the large amount of available property in and 
near downtown.  This effort, produced at least one serious inquiry regarding a 
local property.   There is interest in a similar event in the future with some 
modifications in terms of organization and format.   

Existing General Attitudes 
Conversations with many strongly suggest that people want to see 
development, redevelopment and more things happening.   Despite some 
issues and challenges, there is a general affinity for Mount Clemens and 
recognition of its potential.  There is a shared view that Mount Clemens may 
be at (or near) a tipping point and close to a period of more positive 
development trends and investment activity.  This attitude is tempered by the 
recognition of a disturbing level of negativity from vocal naysayers and a local 
atmosphere that is sometimes ripe with negative attitudes.   Commonly, 
negativity centers on issues related to crime, high taxes, poor schools and 
inaction.  Poor local attitudes were identified by some as being among the 
biggest impediments to future success.   Some see lots of potential in 
downtown Mount Clemens, but also point to the need for “new blood” to help 
reinvigorate downtown thinking. 

Key Takeaways 

 There is a shared view 
that Mount Clemens 
may be at (or near) a 
tipping point and close 
to a period of more 
positive development 
trends and investment 
activity.  

18



There is also a perception that Mount Clemens as a whole has “not kept up 
with the times.”  It is suggested that some businesses have become stagnate as 
they are doing the same thing they did years ago.  At the same time, people 
point toward the need for more business-friendly attitudes and polices from the 
City.   This runs the gamut from issues related to property assessments and 
aggressive noise ordinance enforcement.  There is a sense that some would 
welcome deliberate steps toward being more being business-friendly.  
Comparisons were made between Mount Clemens and other communities and 
there are firm opinions that point to Mount Clemens not being as welcoming 
as others.   

Specific Physical Projects   
Catalytic Project:   Related to the previous observation that some downtown 
property owners seem reluctant to move forward unless someone else takes a 
bold step forward is the need for some kind of catalytic project downtown.   A 
catalytic project is a “game-changing” project to help bolster confidence that 
Mount Clemens is worth investing in and help stimulate other “spin-off” 
projects.  Such a project should be a larger mixed use project that helps to set 
the tone for subsequent projects.    A catalytic project could be either 
redevelopment of an existing underutilized building or a new, infill 
development. 

Destination Retail and Housing:   Many of those interviewed recognize the 
need for several specific uses downtown that would add vibrancy and 
liveness.  Suggested uses include those that help to create more of a 
“destination” such as a distillery, wine tasting venue, destination /themed 
restaurant, specialty retail, microbrewery, etc.   Similarly, a boutique hotel and 
bed and breakfasts are thought to be both desirable and supportable 
downtown.  There was consensus on the need for more housing downtown.   
Mount Clemens offers one of the few housing options for those who desire to 
live in a mixed-use, walkable downtown environment.  Belief in a growing 
demand for loft space is particularly strong.   Some see considerable potential 
for housing – particularly if units are about 1,000 square feet in size, and 
have an open floor plan.  Rents in the $1,200 to $800 range are regarded 
as being generally affordable for younger talented workers.   Secondarily, 
there is belief in the need for condos and brownstone-type downtown housing 
options that can help drive downtown revitalization.   Those units are likely 
more costly and align to higher net-worth households, empty nesters, seniors 
and urban professionals.   Structures used exclusively for housing (not in a 
mixed use building) seem particularly appropriate at the fringes of downtown.  

Physical Projects 

 Catalytic Projects 
 Destination Retail and 

Housing 
 Internet Infrastructure 
 200th Anniversary 
 Water Sports 

19



Along with the need for housing is parallel need for supportive uses such as a 
downtown grocery store and gym to help support downtown living.   A 
downtown gym in addition to the nearby YMCA would allow for downtown 
residents to exercise and a grocery store of some type (perhaps with a smaller 
footprint and a limited product line) would provide basic food buying needs for 
downtown residents.  Tthe farmer’s market will soon be relocating downtown, 
but a more permanent grocery store option will still be needed to support 
downtown living, especially in the winter months. It was reported that Whole 
Foods considered a location in Mount Clemens - but ultimately decided not to 
go forward.   Naturally, this is a “chicken and egg” proposition as even a 
small downtown grocery store presumes some demand from the downtown 
itself and adjacent neighborhoods.   Enhancing food options downtown goes 
beyond consideration of a traditional brick and motor grocery stores.   There is 
some interest in food trucks downtown as relates to the Oakland University 
student population downtown and other professionals.   Local restaurants may 
be able to broaden their business model by adding food trucks as one way to 
more conveniently reach potential customers.       

Internet Infrastructure:  Internet infrastructure is an issue as it relates to the needs 
of local technology-oriented firms.  There are at least three local technology-
oriented firms (Eyewyre, Hunch Free, NES World Group, others) that depend 
on internet connectivity and there are some reasons to think that improvements 
to local broadband infrastructure may be needed.   In Downtown Detroit, 
Rocket Fiber recently launched with internet speeds up to 10,000 Mbps over a 
fiber optic infrastructure (reportedly a 1,000 times faster than the average 
residential connection in the U.S.).  The identification of specific needed 
improvements in downtown Mount Clemens requires more focused effort, but 
the connection between strong internet connectivity and the creation of an 
environment that attracts and supports technology-oriented firms and 
technology-savvy younger residents is clear.    

The 200th Anniversary of the City:   2017 is the 200th anniversary of the City 
of Mount Clemens.   This date is far enough into the future to potentially allow 
time to plan and execute, and could be the kind of catalytic project that could 
help celebrate this community milestone and help stimulate economic 
development.    

Water Sports:   Mount Clemens can and should be more of water sports 
destination.  A new canoe/kayak/paddle board livery is opening in 
downtown the spring of 2016 and it will operate out of the bath house near 
downtown. Support for water sport activities should be included as part of a 

20



collaborative effort to reinvigorate the riverfront and connect it to the core 
downtown. This can be accomplished through partnerships and with grant 
funding for capital improvements. 

Marketing and Branding  
In keeping with the Strategic Planning Goals of the city later outlined in section 
D, community leaders recognize that Mount Clemens needs to refresh and 
energize its image and brand in order to attract residents and businesses. Too 
often, the image of Mount Clemens seems to be associated with building 
vacancies and urban distress.  People describe a certain “tiredness” 
associated with the city that undermines efforts to attract new investment and 
draw attention to opportunity.   Most recognize the importance of and need for 
more effort to define the Mount Clemens “message,” identity and brand.     

Conversations during the interviews and focus groups provided some insight 
into steps forward.  Mount Clemens is fortunate that certain local tech 
companies have some branding and marketing expertise that could be 
tapped.  For example, the local firm named Hunch Free was involved in the 
development of the online presence of Advancing Macomb, which focuses on 
unified economic and community development for all of Macomb County.   
Knowledgeable local marketing professionals suggested that the City needs to 
do a better job of defining the essence of Mount Clemens and key in on 
walkable, green, and historic attributes that support the notion of “place.”    

Because of the need to be authentic in efforts to rebrand and market a 
community, it was noted that Mount Clemens can lay legitimate claim to health 
and wellness.  The local history with regard to the local mineral baths is 
significant.  Health and wellness is important to everyone, but given the context 
of an older local population and the general aging of the population 
nationally, this message can resonate very well to an outside audience.  It was 
reported that a local company is now using local mineral water for health and 
beauty products, and a local spa is using the mineral water in its facility.   This 
concept is also directly aligned to findings generated by the City Commission’s 
SWOT exercise.    

Most recognize the 
importance of and need for 
more effort to define the 
Mount Clemens 
“message,” identity and 
brand.     

21



Building on the core message of health and wellness, recreational 
opportunities should also be a related core message in renewed efforts to 
market and brand Mount Clemens.  Lake St. Clair is about 5 miles to the east 
via the Clinton River which is navigable by recreational vessels.  Boat docks 
are present in downtown Mount Clemens, and in the summer of 2016, a new 
canoe/kayak rental is planned to open downtown. Paddlesports (canoeing, 
kayaking, rafting, stand up paddle boards) are a growing leisure activity in the 
US.  Paddlesports are often a family-oriented pursuit and one that can leverage 
other economic development activity as people combine trips with a visit to a 
local restaurant or local store for supplies.   Just to the south of where the 
Clinton River empties into Lake St. Clair is the Lake St.Clair Metropark with a 
tremendous range of recreational opportunities spread across hundreds of 
acres.           

Along with health and recreation, art and culture are also community attributes 
that should be woven into a new branding and marketing effort.  Mount 
Clemens is home to the Anton Art Center, which is housed in a renovated 
Carnegie library, and it is the place for art exhibitions and art-related classes. 
The Anton Art Center also sponsors the annual Mount Clemens Art Fair, held in 
downtown Mount Clemens. Activities associated with the performing arts are 
oriented toward the 2,500-seat Macomb Music Theatre in downtown.  This 
theater was recently purchased by an individual with plans to restore and 
upgrade the building and to add events and shows.    

More efforts are needed to more closely identify the core messages Mount 
Clemens should build on in a new branding and marketing effort.  Ideally, this 
effort takes place with the involvement of partners mentioned and includes a 
deep and meaningful effort to uncover and specifically define the authentic 
core messages that Mount Clemens can consistently deliver on and to develop 
and manage their municipal brand.    

  

Strong and emerging core 
messages foundational to 
subsequent branding & 
marketing efforts  

 Health and Wellness  
 Recreational Opportunities 
 Art and Culture 
 Technology 

22



Desired Collaboration   
The need for more collaboration exists at several levels in the minds of several 
community leaders.   In particular, this includes collaboration with Macomb 
County, Oakland University, and the Chamber of Commerce.  The need for 
more collaboration also extends to efforts needed to explore more synergies 
between activities so that one event/attraction leverages other activities and 
therefore economic development.     

Macomb County Collaboration:   Deeper and more substantive partnerships 
with Macomb County need to be forged in the minds of several people.  
County offices downtown house many employees who represent local 
purchasing power.  Many are also local residents with ties to the City of 
Mount Clemens.   At a more programmatic level, Macomb County Planners 
are working on a “Mount Clemens Food Destination” Project.   The project 
seeks to support local food processing and sale, and help for local food-
related entrepreneurs.    Similarly, marketing efforts discussed previously, 
should connect with and leverage county-level marketing efforts expressed in 
the “Make Macomb Your Home” (MMYH) Program.   The MMYH website, 
showcases Macomb County communities and provides a portal for information 
about places to live, stay and enjoy in Macomb County.   The MMYH website 
provides space for community-driven content.  The Make Macomb Your Home 
website is accompanied by billboards, social media, and television/movie 
commercials.   

Oakland University Collaboration:  Oakland University is an increasingly 
important presence in Downtown Mount Clemens.  Enrollment has grown from 
about 300 students to about 800 in the past 4-5 years and there are plans for 
continued growth.   Substantially more growth would be necessary before 
expanded physical facilities would be needed.  Presently, there is an important 
positive and collaborative relationship between OU, DDA, City and Macomb 
County that can be leveraged and enhanced going forward.  Even stronger 
working relationships are viewed as being beneficial in three ways.  First, in 
terms of providing learning local opportunities for students.  Second, in terms of 
leveraging the local economic impact of an institution of higher education in 
downtown.   Third, in terms of engaging OU alumni (about 20,000 in 
Macomb County) to volunteer for community events.       

Local OU students can gain valuable practical experience in local internship 
programs and class projects.  Some particular areas where existing efforts can 
be expanded include engaging students interested in public administration and 
law enforcement. The criminal justice program at OU is strong and there may 

Collaboration 

 Macomb County 
 Oakland University 
 Macomb County 

Chamber 

23



be opportunities to tap student resources to help with local safety 
issues/concerns. Another specific area relates to grant writing to help 
supplement city staff availability and to support a wide range of community 
projects.      

Students and faculty are also potential customers for downtown businesses.   
Nearly all OU staff live in Macomb County and while OU is a commuter 
school (and is likely to remain so for the foreseeable future), the 800 students 
that are drawn to campus from the larger region creates demand for products 
and services that would not otherwise exist.  Some downtown businesses have 
discounts for students, but there are reasons to believe that students want more 
local food options, especially a coffee place.  Closer collaboration between 
the DDA and OU may help reveal business opportunities for existing 
businesses, or for new ventures.  

Macomb County Chamber Collaboration:   From its office in downtown Mount 
Clemens, the Macomb County Chamber of Commerce is the voice of business 
and advocates local business interests.   As part of its mission the Chamber 
has offered classes in entrepreneurship.   Such classes could be expanded 
locally to support and encourage business start-ups.  

Advancing Macomb:   Advancing Macomb is focused on economic and 
community development as the unified voice of Macomb County’s corporate, 
institutional, non-profit and public community.  As an organization, Advancing 
Macomb sees itself as a supportive partner with local governments that are 
taking steps to pursue goals.  Some areas where Advancing Macomb may be 
a particularly important partner for the City of Mount Clemens include more 
steps to support local retail and services, more efforts to help define the local 
Mount Clemens “experience,” and in terms of expanded branding and 
marketing efforts.  Presently, Advancing Macomb is working with The Clinton 
River Watershed Council as it works to develop and enhance recreational 
opportunities along the Clinton River.  Further development of these 
opportunities can be focused on downtown Mount Clemens along the river 
corridor where many see significant untapped potential to attract people and 
economic activity.     

  

24



Further Studies  
Many community leaders express a strong desire to “do something” to help 
jumpstart development and redevelopment activity.  People want to see the 
City facilitate desired development projects and offer more creative 
approaches to economic development.   This may include incentivizing 
specific types of development projects –particularly, micro-enterprise businesses 
and start-ups.  Essentially, this involves defining ways to help proposed private 
projects move forward.  Such a program could be targeted to needed 
downtown business ventures.   

Potential Micro-Grant Program: Macomb County is an entitlement community 
under the CDBG program.  It receives about $1.5 million in CDBG dollars 
and $1.4 million in HOME funds.  About 400K goes to housing rehabilitation 
(county-wide) and some is distributed to local governments throughout Macomb 
County.  Mount Clemens receives about $67K annually in funds for eligible 
projects.   Historically, this funding goes to neighborhood projects, but it is 
also possible that it could fund a micro-loan or micro-grant program to support 
local business start-ups and/or expansions.   Macomb County staff have 
experience with such programs. 

Market Studies:   Up-to-date market studies for both commercial and housing 
sectors are lacking in Mount Clemens.  A downtown commercial market study 
could help identify voids in local business offerings that could be satisfied by 
expansions of existing business establishments, or by new ventures.   Detailed 
market studies identify very specific business needs based on local disposable 
income, local spending patterns, the existing mix of commercial offerings, and 
potential synergies between existing businesses and complimentary 
establishments.   Most market studies are able to identify specific needs – such 
as the absence of specific categories of retail/service offerings to the level of 
describing an amount of needed square feet associated with a business 
category.     

Steps Forward 

 Micro-Grant 
 Market Studies 
 Parking Management 

25



Notably, in terms of housing, a Target Market Analysis (TMA) has not yet been 
produced for Macomb County.   TMA’s are being done for many County’s 
across Michigan to help identify unmet demand for housing products in a local 
markets.   These efforts have been partially funded by the Michigan State 
Housing Authority (MSDHA).  Often, and throughout the State of Michigan, the 
results of TMA’s point to significant demand for “missing middle housing” 
types.  Missing middle housing is generally two-family, townhomes and various 
types of multi-family housing products sought by young singles, childless 
couples, retirees and empty nesters.  These households (a large and growing 
segment of the population in many communities – including Mount Clemens) 
often desire a more urban and walkable environment.   

 

 

One important place where “missing middle housing” can be provided in 
conjunction with new construction or adaptive reuse is in and near downtown 
areas.   Completion of a TMA would likely help validate multiple comments 
made during the Interviews and small focus group meetings that suggested the 
need for more housing in and near downtown Mount Clemens.  While each 
developer may do his or her own market study, the value of the TMA is to 
draw broad attention to opportunities and help build interest in specific types 
of housing.  This can ultimately help drive developer interest in project 
development.   Further, the expansion of “missing middle housing” not only 
adds to the mix of local housing choices, it also supports the goal of attracting 
and retaining younger talented workers who often want to live in a more lively, 
walkable, bikeable, dynamic and amenity-rich urban environment.   It is often 
reported that young talented workers choose where to live first, then look for a 
job, or create their own job.      

Key Points 

 Mount Clemens is not 
equipped with the 
results of a market 
study that would help 
document unmet local 
demand for “missing 
middle housing.” 

 More “missing middle 
housing” is important to 
both expand housing 
choices and to 
attracting and retaining 
younger talent. 

 Younger talented 
workers often want to 
live in a more lively, 
walkable, bikeable, 
dynamic and amenity-
rich urban environment.    
 

26



Parking Management Plan. Parking is challenging in downtown Mount 
Clemens (as it is in nearly all downtowns).  Some employers spend in excess 
of $3,500 a year for employee parking passes.   Parking for OU students is 
sometimes problematic as students are given passes and instructions, but some 
park in the wrong places from time to time.   There are also reports of students 
driving around for a half hour trying to get a parking space.   

D. Economic Development Vision and Strategy  
As part of the Strategic Planning Process concluded in July 2015, the City of 
Mount Clemens updated its mission statement to read – “The City of Mount 
Clemens is dedicated to providing excellent leadership and municipal services 
that enhance the quality of life for our diverse community, preserving our history 
and great neighborhoods.”  It also identified five priority issues to address over 
the next 2-5 years which are as follows:  

1. Marketing community assets to attract residents and businesses; 

2. Redeveloping the city’s central riverfront property;  

3. Reinvigorating the historic mineral baths industry; 

4. Revitalizing the city’s historic downtown to create an urban and diverse 
city center;  

5. Stabilizing and Enhancing Neighborhoods. 

As mentioned previously, the crux of local economic development strategy 
focuses on: A) Showcasing opportunity, B) Removal or reduction of uncertainty 
and risk and, C) Identification of future public actions that will support and 
encourage private investment.  Blending these three considerations with the five 
issues previously identified leads to the creation of the following actions.  This 
framework helps organize and further develop the thoughts generated from the 
City Commission’s Strategic Plan in two ways.  First it adds perceptions and 
insights gained from the interviews/focus group and it connects insights 
generated from this Master Plan Update.    

1. Marketing community assets to attract residents and businesses; 
A. Showcasing Opportunity: 
 Secure outside assistance to develop a marketing/ branding campaign.   
 Connect new efforts to MMYH. 
 Tap local firms and talent to assist in branding/marketing project.  
 Connect marketing/ branding to social media. 
 Target youth and groups inclined toward entrepreneurial ventures.  

New Mission 
Statement: 

 The City of Mount 
Clemens is dedicated 
to providing excellent 
leadership and 
municipal services that 
enhance the quality of 
life for our diverse 
community, preserving 
our history and great 
neighborhoods  

27



 Promote the City as an RRC community when certified.    
 

2. Redeveloping the city’s central riverfront property 
A. Showcasing Opportunity: 
 Develop and share redevelopment concepts.  
 Prepare a “Request for Proposals” as necessary to solicit developer interest 

and attention.   
 List property with national or regional broker. 
 Draw attention to redevelopment concepts in this master plan to show a 

transformative redevelopment project. 
 
B. Removal or reduction of uncertainty and risk: 
 Conduct a zoning audit to identify unnecessary or unintended regulatory 

hurdles to redevelopment of the riverfront property.  
 Appraise publicly owned riverfront property. 
 Prepare commercial market study to draw attention to unmet retail and 

service needs. 
 

C. Identification of future public actions that will support and encourage 
private investment: 
 Relocate fire hall 
 Relocate city hall 
 Consider infrastructure investments  
 Consider public access issues 

 

3. Reinvigorating the historic mineral baths industry 
A. Showcasing Opportunity: 
  Establish ad hoc committee to evaluate:  Possible locations, Business 

concept – bath house, spa, hybrid, Alternative medicine applications; 
partnership with modern medicine/hospitals, investors, sources of capital 
and Information campaign 
 

4. Revitalizing the city’s historic downtown to create an urban and diverse 
city center 
A. Showcasing Opportunity: 
 Support and encourage annual investor summit s  
 Directly engage in efforts to acquaint hospitals, realtors, and educational 

institutions with downtown development opportunities.   
 Engage national site consultants. 
 Draw attention to opportunities with walking tours.    
 

28



B. Removal or reduction of uncertainty and risk: 
 Prepare a housing market analysis to identify housing demand in and near 

downtown. 
 Prepare commercial market study to draw attention to unmet retail and 

service needs. 
 Conduct a zoning audit to identify unnecessary or unintended regulatory 

hurdles to redevelopment of mixed use projects.   
 Engage the Michigan Historic Preservation Office to help identify potential 

obstacles and opportunities with respect to building rehabilitation.    
 
C. Identification of future public actions that will support and encourage 
private investment: 
 Investigate the development of a micro-loan/grant program to support new 

business development ventures 
 

5. Stabilizing and Enhancing Neighborhoods 
A. Showcasing Opportunity: 
 Recognize successful neighborhood watch group efforts.  
    

B. Removal or reduction of uncertainty and risk: 
 Enhance code enforcement and rental housing programs.  
 
C. Identification of future public actions that will support and encourage 
private investment: 
 Sidewalk repair and replacement. 
 

29



Redevelopment Strategy 

Citywide Goals and Location-Specific Recommendations 
While the previous chapter described overall marketing and economic strategy 
for Mount Clemens, this chapter takes a closer look at how to strengthen 
redevelopment across the city.  

A. Redevelopment Goals 
 Provide an efficient review process 
 Ensure redevelopment is sensitive to its context 
 Ensure the redevelopment process is transparent and proactively 

engage the public  
 Identify catalytic sites/projects to help spur further reinvestment 
 Encourage a mixture of uses 
 Promote mixed residential buildings (mixture of unit and building sizes, 

owner/rental, non-residential on first floor, varied architectural styles) 
 Maximize potential of vacant and underutilized sites 
 Redevelop ample surface parking lots with infill development 
 Improve the image of downtown and corridors for visitors (ensuring 

they are memorable and distinct) 
 Collaborate with Macomb County: balance city and county elected 

officials’ visions with each’s staffs to make things happen 

B. Redevelopment Evaluation Criteria  
As redevelopment is planned and occurs in the city, it will be critical as 
opportunities arise to evaluate their potential for redevelopment. When Mount 
Clemens becomes Redevelopment Ready Certified, the City will be 
encouraged to continually identify redevelopment sites (in addition to those 
highlighted in this chapter) and package them for marketing and solicitation of 
developers. In order to prioritize and evaluate the likelihood of redevelopment, 
the following criteria should be used: 

 Size (if there are a number of parcels, the ability to easily assemble) 
 Vacant/building (amount of rehabilitation or demolition needed) 
 Rebuild/rehab 
 Public/private ownership (if private, willing owner) 
 Contamination (remediation could be a challenge to redevelopment) 
 Potential to spur further redevelopment 
 Location in a tipping point neighborhood where redevelopment can 

help stabilize further deterioration) 
 Obstacles to redevelopment 
 Parking availability 
 Ensure districts do not compete against each other: create distinct 

identities for downtown, corridors, industrial, and railroad districts 

Please see the next 
chapter for specifics 
related to Downtown 
redevelopment 

Framework for 
identification and 
prioritization of 
redevelopment sites 
 

30



Information to include in PIP: 
Basic Information: 
 Photo of the site and/or 

rendering 
 Desired development outcomes 

for the site 
 Owner contact information 
 Community contact information 
 Zoning 
 Lot size 
 Building size 
 State equalized value 
 Utilities on site: Water, sewer, 

electricity, natural gas 
 Wired broadband infrastructure: 

DSL, cable, fiber 
Detailed Information: 
 Available financial incentives 
 Deed restrictions 
 Property tax assessment 

information 
 Property survey 
 Previous uses 
 Existing conditions report 
 Known environmental and/or 

contamination conditions 
 Soil conditions 
 Demographic data 
 Surrounding amenities 
 Planned infrastructure 

improvements as identified in 
CIP 

 GIS information including site 
location and street maps 

 Natural features map 
 Traffic studies 
 Target market analysis or 

feasibility study results 
Source: RRC Best Practices 

 

C. Overcoming Redevelopment Challenges  
 Market Redevelopment Sites and Solicit Developers 

- Clearly articulate and communicate vision 
- Post Property Information Packages (PIP) on the City’s website 
- Work with local partners (DDA, County, Chamber) to promote 

vision 
- Promote sites on online databases such as Zoom Prospector, 

OppSites, and the MEDC Real Estate Database  
- Continue to host developer matchmaking events 

 Link Redevelopment Sites and Other Plans 
- As the City updates its Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) annually, 

evaluate the ability to use CIP projects as incentives for 
redevelopment 

- Future subarea planning may also identify key redevelopment sites 
that should be promoted 

 Incentivize Redevelopment 
- Historic or contaminated property have their own challenges that 

may need incentives to help “fill the gap” and convert them into 
lucrative opportunities 

- Establish and promote clear incentives to demonstrate the City is a 
willing partner in redevelopment for certain types of projects 

 How best to engage challenging owners: 
- If owners are not motivated… 
 Maybe they inherited the property and have no impetus to 

improve it 
 They may not care that their property is in disrepair 
 They may not have a mortgage payment and are regularly 

getting checks from tenants (i.e. easy money)  
 If they are not professional developers, it may be too risky to 

redevelop  
 They may need to find a partner who knows what they are 

doing to help inspire them to see the potential 
- If owner is unresponsive, be persistent: may need to talk to a 

broker or someone else who knows something about the project 

D. Identification of priority sites and districts  
Throughout the process of updating this master plan, several sites were 
identified by the steering committee, stakeholders, and the consultants as prime 
redevelopment opportunities outside the downtown. They were selected as 
preliminary redevelopment-ready sites because of their scale, vacancy, and 
ability to demonstrate redevelopment progress following the criteria outlined 
above. More detail on each site is included in the next section. Even further 
detail should be added as these transform into Property Information Packages 
(PIP) for the RRC (see sidebar for suggested contents). 

 Old St. Joe’s site 
 I-94 13-Acre Site 
 Stilson Field (River Road Mineral Spring 

Site) 
 Former Industrial Site 

 31



  

32



 

Former St. Joseph Hospital – 215 North Avenue 

 Grotto, chapel, and historic hospital is currently vacant – the remainder 
of the site is currently being used as clinic and hospital  

 Solicit developer and architect to investigate the feasibility of adaptive 
reuse as housing or senior housing 

 Explore HUD and historic preservation financial assistance to overcome 
likely costly rehab costs 

 Seek to preserve the historic character of the building, especially the 
exterior 
 

 Building size: 29,000 sq. ft. 
 Utilities: will likely be a moderate cost to separate from the portion of 

the building currently being used 
 Zoned: MU – Multi-Use 
 Owner: Select Specialty, has expressed willingness to find a new use 

Opportunities + Challenges 

 Historic building with 
character 

 Already been gutted 
 Willing seller 
 Needs physical separation 

from current uses in 
building 

 Housing opportunity: artist 
lofts/incubator or senior 
living 

Opportunities + Challenges 

 Historic building with 
character 

 Already been gutted 
 Cost of rehab could be a 

challenge to overcome 
 Willing seller 
 Needs physical 

separation from current 
uses in building 

 Housing opportunity: artist 
lofts/incubator or senior 
living 

 Possible Advancing 
Macomb partnership 
opportunity 

 Need to resolve ease of 
access to parking at rear 
of site 

33



I-94 Commercial Gateway – 24591 N. River Road: 

 Big box and/or strip regional commercial potential 
 Restaurant pads overlooking waterfront 
 Work with MDOT on site access from or near expressway ramps 

 

 Lot size: 13 acres 
 Zoned:  GC – General Commercial 
 Owner:  Need to build better relationship with owner  

Opportunities + Challenges 

 Large property 
 Convenient I-94 access 
 Waterfront 
 Visibility challenge, but some 

reduction in landscaping 
could improve visibility from 
River Road and off-ramps 

34



Stilson Field (River Road Mineral Spring Site) – 100 N. River Road: 

 Attached residential opportunity close to downtown 
 Mixed-use along River Road frontage 
 Tie new development to MacArthur Park and non-motorized 

connections to downtown and riverfront 
 

 Lot size: 5.75 acres 
 Zoned:  MU – Multi-Use 
 Owner:  Earl Stilson   

Opportunities + Challenges 

 Prime waterfront location 
 Close to downtown 
 Mineral springs 
 Adjacent to MacArthur 

Park 
 Brownfield site 

Concept Plan 

35



 Former Industrial Site – 332 Cass Avenue: 

 Owner not currently actively looking to sell, leased as parking lot till 
2019 

 Industrial manufacturing opportunity 
 Continue discussions with owner to promote City’s desire to redevelop 

as industrial and commercial 

 

 Lot size: 7.5 acres 
 Zoned:  I-2 – Heavy Industrial, could be ripe for rezoning to 

allow commercial on the frontage 
 Owner:  TriMas 

 

  

Opportunities + Challenges 

 Site cleared 
 Proximity to rail 
 Proximity to Groesbeck 

Hwy 

36



Other Redevelopment Opportunities: 

South Gratiot Gateway (NB Gratiot and Main)  

 Orient primary building entrances to Main Street 
 Secondary entry on Gratiot where necessary, but have an inviting 

“backdoor” 
 Gratiot: consistent street treatment as entry to downtown, no fences, 

consistent signage 
 Rezone east of NB Gratiot to allow attached residential for TOD-

friendly townhouses  
 Instead of berm, more urban landscape solutions 
 Improve streetscape features as gateway to downtown 
 Add new zoning district for Downtown Edge 

  

Opportunities + Challenges 

 Gratiot visibility 
 Downtown gateway 
 Within DDA 

37



Community Center – This City-owned building is underutilized and current 
private operations are limited. Because the City no longer has recreation 
programming, it could explore a partnership with Clinton Township, and add 
adult education or workforce training classes.  

E. Corridor Design Guidelines  
Applicable to Commercial, Industrial, and Multi-Use Districts 

Many of Mount Clemens’s corridors feel dated and do not project the quality 
of development that could better represent the community. To improve 
perceptions and put the city’s best foot forward, the following 
recommendations are presented for Gratiot Ave., Cass Ave., Groesbeck Hwy, 
N. River Rd., and North Ave. 

Corridor Design Goals 
 Exterior architecture features a cohesive identity 
 Coordinated signage provides visual continuity consistent with the city’s 

identity 
 Sidewalks and circulation systems encourage non-motorized 

transportation and provide accessibility to building entrances 
 Street walls and building entrances are transparent, active and enticing 

to pedestrians 
 Automobile traffic and non-motorized transportation are balanced with 

a safe network of roadways and access management 
 
Recommendations 
 Gateways to the city should have a sense of arrival through welcome 

signage, pavement treatments, lighting, and improved site design. 
 Landscape standards: require more low-lying landscape (knee wall, 

hedgerow, shrubs) 
 Revise fence standards: prohibit uncoated chain-link in CB and MU, 

add height standards 
 Clarify urban vs. suburban landscape design buffers for CB and MU 

vs. GC 
 Improve parking lot screening and require more landscape islands 
 Encourage higher quality facades  

38



 

39



 

Downtown Plan 
 

A. Downtown Analysis of Needs 
The Downtown Plan update process began with a review of existing planning 
and strategic documents prepared over the last decade which focused on the 
revival of Downtown Mount Clemens.  These documents include the following: 

 Mount Clemens Waterhub Visioning Project (University of Michigan, 
2010) 

 Mount Clemens Strategic Plan (SEMCOG, 2015) 
 Downtown District Plan (Michigan State University, 2011) 
 City of Mount Clemens Concept for Shared Parking (Partners in 

Architecture, PLC, 2014) 
 Parks & Recreation Sub-Area Plan (Hamilton Anderson Associates, 

2011) 
 Land Use Master Plan (Hamilton Anderson Associates, with 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 2010) 

Each of these documents reveals elements of a comprehensive strategy for 
supporting and improving downtown Mount Clemens.  Many of the ideas 
remain relevant, and are therefore integrated into the analysis of the downtown 
and the subsequent recommendations of this document. 

A Downtown Focus Group Workshop was conducted in October of 2015 
which included an introduction into the planning process, a summary of past 
planning efforts, a walking tour of downtown, and an interactive session 
during which participants provided critical input into the needs of downtown 
Mount Clemens.  

Meeting participants were asked to identify which elements of the project 
area’s physical environment that they would preserve, enhance, or transform, 
defined as:   

 Preserve:  Places or key attributes within the project area that strongly 
contribute to the community’s economic, cultural, architectural, and 
social strength and should be preserved based on their value to the 
community.  

 Enhance:  Places or attributes within the project area that demonstrate 
positive potential as to their physical form and economic and cultural 
importance but are in need of re-investment to help them reach their 
potential. 

40



 Transform:  Places or attributes within the project area that are in need 
of more dramatic change or complete redevelopment and should be 
transformed in use, physical form, etc.   

 

A map was provided for each of the three topic areas noted below, and 
participants noted areas on each map which they believed should be 
Preserved, Enhanced and Transformed.  Through the mapping exercise and 
discussions, the group looked to answer the following questions: 

1. Land Use and Development Opportunities 
 Which one is most critical from your perspective? 
 What type of development is missing? 
 Where is the current action and energy being invested? 
 How will potential transit improvements change downtown 

development? 

2. Vehicular Movement and Parking 
 What part of the traffic movement pattern would you most like to 

change? 
 Are there enough parking spaces? 
 Are they in the right place? 
 What opportunities to improve the traffic/parking system do you see? 
 Are downtown visitors able to get to their destination(s) easily? 

3. Open Space and Connections 
 What are the most critical events for downtown businesses? 
 When is there a critical mass of people in downtown (day, hour)? 
 Is the downtown environment inviting to pedestrians, bicyclists? 
 What is the biggest impediment to getting downtown for non-

motorized travelers?  
 What are the biggest opportunities of improving open 

space/connections in downtown? 

 

 

 

  

41



Gratiot Rapid Transit 

At the time of this Master Plan Update, the Southeast Michigan Regional 
Transit Authority was conducting a study for a rapid transit system from 
downtown Detroit to M-59 with a station in downtown Mt. Clemens.  Different 
alternatives were under consideration including one alternative that would 
convert one lane in each direction to an exclusive lane for transit only along 
the existing northbound/southbound Gratiot. Another option would run the bus 
rapid transit down Main Street. Transit-oriented development near future 
stations will help reinforce Downtown as a destination as described later in this 
chapter.  

  

Source: RTA Gratiot Rapid Transit Study 

Currently, SMART 
operates a transit 
route along Gratiot 
serving the 
downtown which has 
the highest ridership 
route in the county. 

Rapid Transit Station 
Simulation 

42



B. Existing Conditions 
Downtown Mount Clemens has weathered a number of transitions in economic 
conditions and market interest.  With the current resurgence in interest in living 
and experiencing urban areas, it would appear that the timing is right for 
economic growth in the downtown.  Currently the downtown is in the early 
stages in evolution of urban areas, and redevelopment has been slow in 
coming.  However, many of the key pieces are in place for re-investment; 
regional job growth, increased market interest, solid downtown job base, key 
arts and learning institutions, and an interesting and attractive historic urban 
character.     

Based on the review of existing resources, site visits, the workshop and other 
stakeholder meetings, the existing condition of Downtown Mount Clemens is 
summarized below: 

 

Land Use and Development 

 The downtown area is home to a variety of offices (primarily Macomb 
County and financial institutions), retail, and educational institutions 
(Oakland University) 

 There is not a strong urban residential population living in the core 
downtown, due to lack of available housing.  While there are strong 
neighborhoods adjacent to downtown, they are separated physically by 
NB & SB Gratiot. 

 While the overall downtown business environment is stable, there are a 
number of key vacancies that convey a sense of lack of momentum and 
investment.  

 There are a number of key opportunities for redevelopment of underutilized 
properties, some of which are publically owned land, including parking 
lots and the City Hall site. 

 The downtown has transitioned away from trendy nightclubs which offered 
a draw into downtown, but the popularity of the clubs came with increases 
in public safety issues and costs.  The downtown is primarily busy in the 
day time, and does not draw significant numbers of arts and entertainment 
seekers in the evening. 

 

Vehicular Movement and Parking 

 The surrounding one-way ring road around downtown makes it easier to 
get around the downtown but complicates getting to the downtown core. 
This ring road isolates the downtown from adjacent neighborhoods and 
from the recreation opportunities of the river. 

43



 The one-way configuration on Macomb Place does not support retail uses 
in downtown is that it inhibits easy visual access to businesses, reduces 
legibility of downtown, and forces traffic to the perimeter of downtown. 

 There are no easy bike connections through and around downtown. 
 As noted earlier, creation of a transit hub in downtown is being explored. 

This could stimulate more pedestrian activity downtown. Some downtown 
Main Street parking may need to be removed or relocated to focus this 
street on transit and pedestrians. 

 The wide, high-capacity one-way loop leads to traffic speeds and volumes 
that can erode the suitability for a quality neighborhood. As a result, over 
time suburban-style development has infringed upon the more traditional 
urban-style development. 

 Many of the public parking lots in downtown are underutilized.   
 Generally the location of the parking lots provides for reasonable proximity 

and spatial distribution of parking. 

 

Open Space and Connections 

 Downtown has a number of well-placed and conceived open spaces and 
parklets that contribute to the visitor experiences, including Kennedy Plaza, 
Rotary Park, the clock tower near Main, and Cherry Street.  Most of these 
places have been well maintained, but could benefit from being “spruced 
up” with new lighting and site furniture. 

 The potential demolition of the parking ramp north of the County Building 
creates a great opportunity to link Riverfront Park to the clock tower plaza 
and retail core. 

 The Pedestrian areas of Cherry Street provide a great link from parking lots 
to the retail businesses, and this connection could be expanded. 

 While a pleasant place to visit, the Riverfront Park is a missed opportunity 
to create an active urban waterfront amenity that links to other river front 
areas (such as MacArthur Park), and the downtown. 

 While the DDA sponsors several major events within the downtown, more 
diverse programming may attract a wider audience of potential downtown 
users. 

 While much of the sidewalk areas in downtown are in reasonable 
condition, the streetscape character of downtown has passed its prime, 
and is in need of a re-fresh to create an appearance of economic 
vibrancy.  Investment is currently being made to improve curb ramps and 
paver areas. 

 

  

44



  
45



C. Downtown Improvement Strategies 
Principles 

The recommendations for improving and revitalizing downtown are based on 
a common set of principles, including the following: 

 Downtown needs a set of catalytic investment projects to get the re-
development ball rolling, from both private development and public 
infrastructure sectors.   

 Downtown has a solid framework in place, so the real need is for 
incremental development and partnerships – not a wholesale 
reconstruction 

 The priority for redevelopment should be areas that increase the sense 
of critical mass, building from existing strong areas at the core of 
downtown and not scattershot growth. 

 New zoning approaches and redevelopment plans that encourage 
desired redevelopment should have flexibility so users can respond as 
the market changes. In addition, design expectations need to be 
practical for the market; for example zoning requirements for façade 
materials need to acknowledge the cost implications to developers.  

Land Use and Development 

Economic sustainability of the downtown is critical to community pride, jobs, 
and tax base, and a healthy downtown is a drawing card for new residents.  
A number of key development sites have been identified in downtown, on 
properties that are either privately or publicly held.  Opportunities exist for the 
city to create partnerships with private developers to build on well-located and 
underutilized public lands, as well as for the city to play a role in encouraging 
development of privately owned sites. 

1. Capitalize on Institutional Anchors 
 Encourage Oakland University Campus stability and growth by 

improving pedestrian connections to downtown, providing room for 
parking growth to south, and encouraging integration into downtown 
for building facilities as growth occurs 

 Leverage partnership with County to redevelop the parking deck site 
into a mixed use space to add commercial vitality to Main Street, 
provide for limited parking, and connect downtown to Riverfront Park. 

2. Build Downtown Residential population 
 Encourage residential loft conversion for upper floors of existing 

buildings. 
 Redevelop and reuse vacant structures on south side of downtown 
 Encourage attached residential at downtown perimeter, especially on 

underutilized parcels on New Street. 

Top Actions: 

 Macomb Place/Pine 
Street mixed-use + 
farmer’s market 

 Walnut and N. Main 
vacant buildings 

 New St. housing 
 TOD/county parking 

deck 

Read more about 
catalytic projects in 
the Economic 
Development chapter 

46



 Look for win-win on redeveloping city property on the east 
side of river- increasing tax base of the city while providing 
revenue from the land sale to offset costs of moving City Hall. 
Rezone City Hall property to CBD to maximize redevelopment 
options. 

 
 

  

City Hall Site Potential Redevelopment  

City Hall Redevelopment Principles 
 Retain public access to the river 
 Explore retaining municipal use on site 

vs. relocating elsewhere in downtown 
 Office mixed-use along Market St. and 

Cass Ave. 
 Attached residential to bring much 

needed housing alternatives near 
downtown 

 Explore creative parking solutions, 
including parking under buildings 

 Redevelopment should not detract from 
the necessary effort to reinvigorate 
downtown core 

 Building sizes should scale down from 
the river to First Street to match the 
existing residential scale 

 

47



3. Strengthen Downtown Streets 
 Prioritize Downtown Core development opportunities that create critical 

mass along existing streets. 
 Develop Macomb Place street edge on the south side of the street near 

the arts center to activate this block.   
 Discourage suburban development model on Gratiot at edges of 

downtown. 

4. Encourage arts and entertainment based uses, but not exclusively targeted 
to one age segment (see more in Economic Development and Marketing 
Strategy) 

5. Update zoning ordinances to a form-based code approach that is focused 
on creating flexibility for developers and maintaining and enhancing the 
sense of place for the downtown. 

6. Relocate the Farmer’s Market to downtown, in conjunction with new mixed-
use development at Macomb and Pine Street. 

  

Macomb Place/Pine Street Mixed-Use + Farmer’s Market 

48



Vehicular Movement and Parking 

Making downtown attractive to visitors and moving vehicles into and through 
the downtown area are hampered by a number of past transportation and 
streetscape improvements.  The downtown streets and transportation facilities 
need to be updated to demonstrate continued investment, improve visual 
character, provide for modern transit, and overcome the lack of connectivity 
between downtown and the adjacent parks and neighborhoods.  

1. Humanize Gratiot and Connect to Neighborhoods and River 
 Reduce one or more travel lanes on Gratiot, add buffered bike lane or 

two-way cycle track along the northbound loop 
 Reduce lane widths to 11 feet 
 Redesign the street and the right-of-way streetscape to show speeds 

that can support a reduction in speed limit to 25 or 30 mph 
 Evaluate crosswalk signal timing along Gratiot 
 Install crosswalk signals where absent 
 Create midblock crossing(s) at Kennedy Plaza and New Street/County 

parking redevelopment 
 Increase walk widths to nine or ten feet wide 
 Repair and maintain walks 

2. Make Downtown Easy to Navigate 
 Eliminate one-way street on Macomb Place 
 Improve key gateways into downtown with wayfinding signs, 

pedestrian crossing improvements, lighting, and new landscape 
treatments 

Top Actions: 

 Macomb Place two-way 
conversion 

 Refresh streetscape 
 Walnut festival street 
 Gratiot road diet 

Macomb Place existing one-way configuration 
(between Walnut and Pine)  

 reduced drive-by customer visibility 
 limited access to parking  
 increases congestion on other streets 
 difficult for visitors to navigate downtown 
 tired fountain and streetscape 
 26 parking spaces 

Proposed continuous two-way configuration  

 Easy access from SB Gratiot to heart of downtown 
 Modernization of streetscape and Cherry Street 

plaza 
 Continues same configuration across entirety of 

Macomb Place 
 21 parking spaces 

49



3. Improve the Placemaking Value of the Streetscape 
 Continue process of Universal Access improvements and sidewalk 

maintenance 
 Create a shared festival street block on Walnut between Macomb and 

Main to signify its position as the core area of downtown and provide 
for space for urban street events 

 Replace existing light fixtures with a more energy efficient and visually 
pleasing design, reusing existing poles, light locations, and wiring 
infrastructure if possible. 

 Update site furnishings such as benches and trash receptacles, 
selecting models that are compatible with the historic architecture and 
the urban environment without being “ye old downtown bench” 

4. Become a Transit Hub 

5.  
 Use transit station as a catalyst for downtown development 
 Redesign Main Street to be more pedestrian focused 
 Direct court-related parking to other locations so prime parking is high 

turnover customer space 

Open Space and Connections 

People are moving to places which are better connected for non-motorized 
movement- linking homes to parks, waterfronts, cultural facilities, jobs and 
downtown districts.  Downtown Mount Clemens has a number of key assets 
drawing residents and visitors and is generally walkable; however, there are 
several key linkages missing, and a number of opportunities to improve the 
non-motorized environment.  

1. Improve link between riverfront, downtown, and parks 
 Add design features along Gratiot to celebrate the presence of the 

river, such as pedestrian scaled lights, banner poles, and landscaping. 
 Add mid-block crossings of Gratiot to connect to the park as noted 

above. 
 Create non-motorized connection between Shadyside Park and 

MacArthur Park  

2. Activate riverfront parks (Shadyside, Clinton River, and MacArthur parks) 
with programming and improved facilities focusing on active engagement 
with downtown and water. 
 Include plaza or gathering space along the river 
 Create and urban park edge (promenade) along Gratiot and the 

river’s edge. 
 Encourage vendors and watersports to activate the parks 
 Rehabilitate bath house into useable vendor space 

Top Actions: 

 Entries/gateways and 
edges 

 Improve existing open 
spaces  

 Cherry Street link 

50



3. Refresh existing downtown open spaces with lighting, landscaping and site 
furnishings as needed, at- 
 Kennedy Plaza (as a key visual connection from Macomb 

Place/downtown and riverfront)  
 Clock Tower area/transit station 
 Rotary Park 

4. If the county parking structure is removed, redevelop the site with 
new mixed-use development, to connect the river and 
downtown, and create programmable green space in 
downtown, and possibly a small amount of surface parking 
behind the frontage along Main Street. 

  
Market St. Parking Structure Alternatives 

51



5. Enhance existing pedestrian connections at Cherry Street, through the Red 
Lot to Cass Street, and between New Street and Market Street.  This 
extends an already valuable connection between public parking lots and 
retail businesses. 

6. Improve the non-motorized link between Riverfront Park and MacArthur 
Park, enhance the park facilities at MacArthur, and coordinate public 
waterfront access through the development site to the east of the park. 

D. Prioritized Actions 
RRC Sites (shown on overall Framework Map in Redevelopment Plan) 

 Art Center/farmers market/north red-lot redevelopment (publicly-
owned); use mixed-use development to help fund farmers market shed 

 Walnut rehab/North Main vacant restaurant buildings 
 New Street/Pine Street housing 
 TOD/County-owned parking structure, public space connection from 

New Street to the riverfront 

Public Actions 

 Convert Macomb to two-way 
 Transit station 
 Streetscape refresh 
 Gratiot Road diet 

Additional redevelopment sites 

 The Vault/Flying Nun 
 Victory Inn 
 Macomb Daily building 
 85 N. Main 

52



53



 

 

54



 

Implementation Plan 
 

A. Introduction 
This plan is intended to be a policy guide to move Mount Clemens forward, 
guiding decisions about future physical changes and economic development. 
But the plan is more than just a policy guide for City officials and staff. It is 
expected that this plan will also be a guide to current property owners and 
future investors to get excited about the opportunities in the city.  With the 
commitment of resources to this planning effort comes the expectation that the 
recommendations will be implemented, some soon, or others over the next five 
to ten years. 

The plan is designed to be a road map for action, incorporating strategies, 
specific projects, and programs that will achieve the desired results. This 
chapter synthesizes the many plan recommendations and identifies the actions 
and timing needed to transform the plan’s vision into reality.  Since this is a 5-
10-year plan, the recommendations are flexible so that the guidance and 
timing can be adapted based upon available funding, transportation 
investments, market dynamics and developers’ innovation. 

Guidance for Development Decisions 

This plan is designed to be used by city staff, city officials and others to be 
consistently applied on decisions such as zoning, capital investment, parking 
management, interactions with the county and transportation agencies, and 
reaction to development proposals. Other planning efforts for neighborhoods, 
corridors, parks, and community facilities should be in harmony with the 
comprehensive plan. 

Similarly, private investment decisions by developers, corporations, and land 
owners should consider the plan’s direction. In some cases, a public-private 
partnership may be appropriate to help bridge the gap between a grand idea 
for the community and the realities of obtaining financial backing to ensure a 
project is economically viable. 

Evaluation and Monitoring 

This plan has been developed with a degree of flexibility, allowing nimble 
responses to emerging conditions, challenges, and opportunities. To help 
ensure the plan stays fresh and useful, periodic reviews and amendments are 
required. This will ensure plan goals, objectives, and recommendations reflect 
changing community needs, expectations, and financial realities. 

  

55



B. Catalytic Projects 
In order to build on the momentum of this plan update, the following projects 
have been identified as likely to catalyze further action. These are bold 
projects that could make a lasting impact.  Some might be shorter term, some 
longer, but steps toward implementation could begin. In addition to those bold 
initiatives, there are some easier changes that came be implemented sooner to 
ignite momentum. 

 Convert Macomb Place to Two-Way 
 Explore mixed-use redevelopment of city-owned parking lot alongside 

permanent farmers market 
 Leverage partnership with County to redevelop the parking deck site 

into a mixed use space to add commercial vitality to Main Street, 
provide for limited parking, and connect downtown to Riverfront Park 

 Evaluate the feasibility of redevelopment of city property on the east 
side of river 

 Work with RTA on the routing of rapid transit through downtown either 
along Gratiot or Main Street 

 Redesign Main Street to be more pedestrian friendly by modernizing 
streetscape amenities, adding medians or pedestrian refuge islands, 
improving crosswalks 

 Evaluate design options for Gratiot: request assistance from Macomb 
County and MDOT on evaluating alternatives 

First steps 

These “low hanging fruit” are shorter-term actions that may be either relatively 
simple to implement or necessary to make the bolder catalytic projects happen. 

 Update Zoning Ordinance 
o Audit zoning ordinance to identify unnecessary or unintended 

regulatory hurdles to redevelopment 
o Improve flexibility 
o Remove barriers to redevelopment 
o Improve ease of use 
o Add form-based elements 
o Improve site design requirements 

 Market the redevelopment vision 
o Conduct another investor tour 
o meeting with developers 
o Prepare property information packages 
o guide to development 
o transparent, friendly process 
o RFP for specific sites  

 Partner with the county, DDA, schools, and neighboring communities  

See Section D for a complete 
listing and prioritization of 
Actions 
 

56



o Mutually beneficial 
o Partner on physical projects 
o Partner on marketing efforts 
o Maintain open lines of communication between officials and 

staffs of each community 
o Tap into Advancing Macomb to find strategic partnerships for 

implementation 
o Highlight partnerships and successes 

 Streetscape redevelopment 
o Show public investment to spur private development 
o Modernize lights, pavement, furniture 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

57



C. Zoning Plan 
Because the Future Land Use map is a long range vision of how land uses 
should evolve over time, it should not be confused with the city’s zoning map, 
which is a current (short-term) mechanism for regulating development. 

Therefore, not all properties should be immediately rezoned to correspond with 
the plan. The Future Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a guide for land use 
decisions over a longer period of time (5 to 15 years). 

Review of the Existing Land Use map in comparison to the Future Land Use 
map reveals a gradual transition to the planned land use pattern. Achievement 
of this goal will be gradual, particularly because established businesses and 
homes are located in areas intended for other types of uses in the long term. 

In addition, the Future Land Use map is generalized. More detailed evaluation 
would be required as part of any rezoning consideration. The Future Land Use 
map as well as the plan’s goals and recommendations should be consulted to 
judge the merits of a rezoning request. In review of rezoning and development 
proposals, the City should consider the following sequencing standards: 

 Any rezoning or development proposal must be compatible with the 
Master Plan as a whole and be able to stand and function on its own 
without harm to the quality of surrounding land uses. 

 There must be sufficient public infrastructure to accommodate any 
proposed development or the types of uses that would be allowed 
under the requested zoning change. This must include sufficient sewer 
and water capacity, a transportation system to support impacts, and a 
stormwater system designed to limit impacts. 

 Zoning District 
Future Land Use R1-A R1-B RM-1 RM-2 RMH MHC CB MU GC I-1 I-2 
Traditional Single-Family Neighborhood               
Moderate-Density Residential               
High-Density Residential             
Public and Quasi-Public              
North Avenue                
South Gratiot               
Riverfront Community                  
Commercial and Office               
Downtown              
Railroad Redevelopment              
Industrial              

 

Revise zoning ordinance to 
implement recommendations 
from this plan including 
evaluating districts and adding 
form-based regulations 
 

58



D. Action Table 

Key   

CD Community Development Department 

DPS Department of Public Services 

PC Planning Commission 

CC City Commission 

DDA Downtown Development Authority 

ZBA Zoning Board of Appeals 

MCPED Macomb County Dept. of Planning and Economic Development 

MCDR Macomb County Dept. of Roads 

 

    

Topic 
Priority 
Term 

Responsible 
Party 

For More Info, 
See… 

Zoning           

Z1 Prepare a new Zoning Ordinance to replace the 2003 Zoning 
Ordinance: 

Zoning Short CD/Consultant  

Z1.1 Adopt conditional rezoning procedures Zoning  CD/Consultant Zoning Plan 

Z1.2 Amend multi-use zoning district to incorporate design 
standards for the Railroad Redevelopment district 

Design 
standards 

 CD/Consultant Redevelopment 
Strategy 

Z1.3 Adopt form-based regulations for the Downtown and new 
Downtown Edge District (South Gratiot and Riverfront 
Community) so that buildings and site design are consistent 
with the Master Plan 

Downtown, 
South Gratiot, 
Riverfront 
Community 

 CD/Consultant Downtown Plan 

Z1.4 Evaluate school, church and institutional reuse criteria to 
ensure redevelopment or reuse fits appropriately with the 
character of the neighborhood 

Reuse  CD/Consultant Future Land Use 
Plan 

Z1.5 Evaluate residential and mixed-use districts to accommodate 
a wider variety of attached housing types 

Housing  CD/Consultant ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

Z1.6 Ensure zoning ordinance and street design standards 
emphasizes non-motorized connections and low-impact 
stormwater design 

Complete 
Streets 

 CD/Consultant  

Z1.7 Develop riverfront design standards for building placement, 
design, and water-related activities 

Riverfront   Downtown Plan 

Z2 Rezone South NB Gratiot east frontage to allow attached 
residential 

South Gratiot Short CD Redevelopment 
Strategy 

Z3 Rezone Railroad Redevelopment land use area to multi-use 
district to facilitate potential redevelopment 

Zoning Short CD Redevelopment 
Strategy 

Physical Planning         

P1 Request MDOT study the potential of converting one lane of 
Gratiot to buffered bikes lanes or a two-way cycle track or 
conversion to two-way traffic 

Complete 
Streets 

Ongoing DPS, MDOT Transportation 
Chapter 

P2 Implement Macomb County Non-motorized Plan to incorporate 
more bike routes, lanes, and pathways throughout the city 

Complete 
Streets 

Ongoing DPS, CD, 
MCDR 

Transportation 
Chapter 

P3 Discourage suburban development model on Gratiot at edges 
of downtown 

Downtown 
redevelopment 

Ongoing CD Downtown Plan 

59



P4 Encourage Oakland University Campus stability and growth by 
improving pedestrian connections to downtown, providing 
room for parking growth to south, and encouraging integration 
into downtown for building facilities as growth occurs 

Downtown 
redevelopment 

Ongoing DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P5 Continue process of Universal Access improvements and 
sidewalk maintenance 

Streetscape Ongoing DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P6 Prepare and annually update six-year capital improvements 
plan that coordinates with the master plan 

Capital 
Improvements 

Annual DPS, CC, PC  

P7 Annually review master plan and track progress toward 
achieving actions 

Implementation Annual CD, PC  

P8 Focus more intense development around the planned BRT 
station, work with RTA on the routing and changes to parking 
and pedestrian crossings around the station 

Complete 
Streets 

Short DPS, CD, 
DDA, RTA, 
SMART 

Downtown Plan 

P9 Improve crosswalks on NB Gratiot, add mid-block crossings at 
Kennedy Plaza and New Street/County parking 
redevelopment 

Complete 
Streets 

Short DPS, MDOT Downtown Plan 

P10 Encourage residential loft conversion for upper floors of existing 
buildings 

Downtown 
residential 

Short DDA Downtown Plan 

P11 Encourage attached residential at downtown perimeter, 
especially on underutilized parcels on New Street 

Downtown 
residential 

Short CD, DDA Downtown Plan 

P12 Replace existing light fixtures with a more energy efficient and 
visually pleasing design, reusing existing poles, light locations, 
and wiring infrastructure if possible 

Streetscape Short DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P13 Update site furnishings such as benches and trash receptacles, 
selecting models that are compatible with the historic 
architecture and the urban environment  

Streetscape Short DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P14 Refresh existing downtown open spaces with lighting, 
landscaping and site furnishings as needed 

Streetscape Short DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P15 Add design features along Gratiot to celebrate the presence of 
the river, such as pedestrian scaled lights, banner poles, and 
landscaping 

Clinton 
Riverfront 

Short DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P16 Encourage vendors and watersports to activate the riverfront 
park 

Clinton 
Riverfront 

Short CD, CC Downtown Plan 

P17 Prepare an RFP to evaluate the feasibility of redevelopment of 
city property on the east side of river- balance increasing tax 
base of the city while providing revenue from the land sale to 
offset costs of moving City Hall. 

Downtown 
redevelopment 

Short CC Downtown 
Plan/Economic 
Development 

P18 Relocate the Farmer’s Market to downtown, in conjunction with 
new mixed-use development at Macomb and Pine Street 

Downtown 
redevelopment 

Mid DDA, DPS, CD Downtown Plan 

P19 Convert Macomb Place from one-way to two-way from Main 
Street to SB Gratiot 

Downtown 
redevelopment 

Mid DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P20 Develop Macomb Place street edge on the south side of the 
street near the arts center to activate this block 

Downtown 
redevelopment 

Mid DDA, CD Downtown Plan 

P21 Improve key gateways into downtown with wayfinding signs, 
pedestrian crossing improvements, lighting, and new 
landscape treatments 

Streetscape Mid DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P22 Enhance existing pedestrian connections at Cherry Street, 
through the Red Lot to Cass Street, and between New Street 
and Market Street 

Streetscape Mid DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P23 Include plaza or gathering space along the river Clinton 
Riverfront 

Mid DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

60



P24 Create and urban park edge (promenade) along Gratiot and 
the river’s edge 

Clinton 
Riverfront 

Mid DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P25 Improve the non-motorized link between Riverfront Park and 
MacArthur Park, enhance the park facilities at MacArthur, and 
coordinate public waterfront access through the development 
site to the east of the park 

Complete 
Streets 

Mid CD, DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P26 Upgrade public parking lot screening and landscaping in 
downtown to make the walk from parking to destinations more 
inviting 

Parking Mid DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

P27 Prepare a parking management and pricing plan to study 
utilization to ensure the most convenient on-street parking is 
high turnover for customers and that employees are parking on 
the edges of the core. Create a simpler system with better 
signage 

Parking Mid DPS Downtown Plan 

Leadership         

L1 Enhance code enforcement to encourage property upkeep, 
especially downtown 

Code 
Enforcement 

Ongoing CD ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

L2 Provide training for elected and appointed officials and staff 
and monitor participation  

Training Ongoing   

L3 CC convenes annual planning and development meeting with 
PC, ZBA and development authorities. 

Coordination Annual CC, PC, ZBA  

L4 Support and encourage periodic investor summits, developer 
matchmaking or similar events 

RRC Annual MCPED, CD, 
DDA 

ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

L5 Foster open collaboration with County leadership Collaboration Ongoing CC, MCPED ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

L6 Directly engage in efforts to acquaint hospitals, realtors, and 
educational institutions with downtown development 
opportunities 

RRC Ongoing MCPED, CD ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

L7 Continue to plan dynamic, unique downtown programming 
and events  

Downtown 
programming 

Ongoing DDA Downtown Plan 

L8 Engage the Michigan Historic Preservation Office to help 
identify potential obstacles and opportunities with respect to 
building rehabilitation 

Collaboration Short CD ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

L9 Leverage partnership with County to redevelop the parking 
deck site at Main and Market into a mixed-use space to add 
commercial vitality to Main Street, provide for limited parking, 
and connect downtown to Riverfront Park 

Collaboration Short DPS, DDA, 
CD, MCPED 

Downtown Plan 

L10 Convene a committee of community leaders to identify a 
physical project in downtown that would celebrate the 200th 
anniversary of the City (2017), upgrade a physical public 
space, and encourage redevelopment.   Possible examples 
include an artistic feature, historical element or other 
placemaking space 

Downtown 
redevelopment 

Short  DDA, CC, DPS ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

L11 Explore partnering opportunities with neighboring communities 
for recreation at the Community Center 

Recreation Mid  Redevelopment 
Plan 

L12 Rehabilitate or relocate bath house near YMCA for useable 
vendor space 

Downtown Mid DDA, DPS Downtown Plan 

Economic Development & Marketing         

ED1  Partner with Macomb County economic development,  MEDC 
staff, and MML Placemaking programs to pursue grants 

Collaboration Ongoing CD, DDA, 
MCPED 

ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED2 Prepare community profile/brochure to share with local and 
national businesses 

Marketing Short CD, Consultant ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

61



ED3 Expand programmatic efforts to include business 
recruitment/retention 

Business 
development 

Short DDA, CD ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED4 Prepare a housing market analysis to evaluate the demand for 
alternative housing downtown and across the city 

Market Study Short CD, DDA, 
Consultant 

ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED5 Prepare commercial market study to draw attention to unmet 
retail and service needs 

Market Study Short CD, DDA, 
Consultant 

ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED6 Prepare a Guide to Development clearly outlining policies and 
procedures 

RRC Short CD Redevelopment 
Strategy 

ED7 Create priority redevelopment site packages using this plan's 
catalytic projects as a basis 

RRC Short CD, DDA Redevelopment 
Strategy 

ED8 Target marketing messaging toward entrepreneurial ventures Business 
development 

Short CD, DDA, 
Consultant 

ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED9 Investigate the development of a micro-loan/grant program to 
support new business development ventures 

Business 
development 

Short CC, CD, DDA ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED10 Secure outside assistance to develop a marketing/ branding 
campaign  

Marketing Short CC, DDA, CD ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED11 Connect new marketing efforts to Make Macomb Your Home Marketing Short CC, MCPED ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED12 Tap local firms and talent to assist in branding/marketing 
project 

Marketing Short CC, DDA, CD ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED13 Connect marketing/ branding to social media Marketing Short CC ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED14 Promote the City as an RRC community when certified RRC Short CC, CD ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED15 Continue to support events to draw attention to development 
opportunities in and near downtown in partnership with 
Macomb County 

Business 
development 

Short  DDA ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED16 More fully evaluate the adequacy of existing broadband 
infrastructure to support technology-based economic activity 
(particularly downtown).  

Business 
development 

Short  CC, DDA, CD, 
MCPED 

ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED17 Establish ad hoc committee to evaluate reinvigorating mineral 
bath industry 

Marketing Mid CC ED/Marketing 
Strategy 

ED18 Create a shared festival street block on Walnut between 
Macomb and Main to signify its position as the core area of 
downtown and provide for space for urban street events 

Downtown 
programming 

Mid CD, DDA Downtown Plan 

 

62



NO:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
The resolution was thereupon declared adopted. 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the City of Mount 
Clemens City Commission at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, September 6, 2016. 
 
 

     
CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, 

    
  a Michigan 

Municipal Corporation 
 
 

     ________________________________ 
    

 Barb Dempsey, Mayor 
 

 
                             
________________________________ 

   
 Lisa Borgacz, City Clerk  

   

63



Once the Master Plan Update is adopted, it will be sent to the MEDC and several checklist items will be completed for 
the City’s Redevelopment Ready Communities certification. 
 
In terms of budget, the original amount was $44,823.00.  The City has currently spent $41,982.81 on this project.  Due to 
keeping this project under budget, our consultant may be able to provide assistance on initial implementation ideas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

64



From: martiellyson@att.net
To: Brian Tingley
Subject: [City of Mount Clemens Report An Issue] Master Plan
Date: Monday, July 25, 2016 12:16:02 PM

Martha Ellyson (martiellyson@att.net) sent a message using the contact form at
http://cityofmountclemens.com/contact/City_of_Mount_Clemens_Report_An_Issue. The plans for downtown are generally very good
and sensible. However moving the Fire Station and City Hall is not. The riverfront should stay public and open to all. North and south
bound M3 should be returned to two-way traffic. AS it is now, it only speeds folks out of town and makes it very difficult to get around.
Try getting to Lincoln Ave. from North Bound M3.

65

mailto:martiellyson@att.net
mailto:BTingley@cityofmountclemens.com


1

Brian Tingley

From: pierced2x@gmail.com
Sent: Tuesday, August 02, 2016 10:11 PM
To: Brian Tingley
Subject: [City of Mount Clemens Report An Issue] Master Plan draft feedback

D.J. Hess (pierced2x@gmail.com) sent a message using the contact form at 

http://cityofmountclemens.com/contact/City_of_Mount_Clemens_Report_An_Issue. Couldn't agree more regarding connecting the city 

center and parks with walk able paths especially on the river. Connecting from MacArthur all the way to Shadyside would be amazing, 

especially considering the under utilization of the river south of Cass. Definitely need more greening up of existing spaces. Kennedy 

plaza feels like a mausoleum more than a park. Not every park can be a destination attraction, but it should have some sort of draw that 

can keep you there for more than a passing glance. Also, I know they are privately owned so the reach of the city is limited, but having 

only a tiny mention at the end of the Macomb Daily building seems to be short changing a major eyesore that has a ton of visibility to 

people driving by our town on South Gratiot. I'd love to see more effort in doing something there. Thanks for taking the time to collect 

feedback! Keep the neighborhoods informed on what we can do to help. There's a lot of people rooting for the Clem. D.J. Hess 142 

Lodewyck  

66



1

Brian Tingley

From: nic2224@gmail.com
Sent: Wednesday, August 03, 2016 10:00 AM
To: Brian Tingley
Subject: [City of Mount Clemens Report An Issue] Master Plan

Nicole Morgia (nic2224@gmail.com) sent a message using the contact form at 

http://cityofmountclemens.com/contact/City_of_Mount_Clemens_Report_An_Issue. As requested, I have reviewed the draft of the 

master plan and would like to offer my feedback. The focus needs to be on developing Mount Clemens as a destination. We have an 

opportunity to be the "downtown" of Macomb County. There are no other cities in Macomb County with a downtown that is structured 

like Mt. Clemens. I agree with your plan that a brewery/winery or something similar will assist in the development, perhaps the "Mitt" 

building or "Hayloft" would be options. It is a shame to see these buildings sitting unoccupied. The city needs to be built in phases (or 

districts as you refer to them), much as you are seeing the Downtown Detroit neighborhoods redevelop i.e. Midtown, Corktown, etc. 

There also needs to be a theme to each area.....this is what has been lacking in the past with Mt. Clemens. Too much mixed use of real 

estate in an area of focused development. Examine other communities that have a vibrant, successful downtown- i.e. Royal Oak, 

Rochester, Birmingham. What do they have in common? Shops, restaurants and entertainment line the visible areas of the city. The 9-

5/M-F businesses are on the perimeter. Also, the need for a fruit market or grocery store is immense. I would guarantee that if "Whole 

Foods" or "Trader Joes" opened their 1st location in Macomb County in Mt. Clemens this would draw people to the downtown area. See 

what Whole Foods has done for Detroit. This is where collaboration with the county can perhaps move this along. Has Oakland 

University been approached to perhaps offer a small dormitory in Mt. Clemens? The old Macomb Daily building would be ideal. 

Entertainment- a "do it yourself" pottery studio, painting with a twist or something similar will bring people into the downtown area. 

However, for it to be a destination there also has to be eateries, coffee shops, bakeries, etc. If you can attract entertainment others will 

follow. While I acknowledge that many more community events are being scheduled/offered in the city, it is imperative that as you plan 

events going forward that you are extremely selective as to participants and branding of the event(s). Specifically, I recently attended 

the "Made in Michigan" event. It was absolutely embarrassing- I am proud of my city and invited friends to join me. That will be the last 

time they attend an event in Mount Clemens. They now have a negative perception of the city. Just because a vendor is willing to pay 

the "entry" fee does not mean they should be invited and allowed to participate. There must be more selective vetting of these vendors. 

There are many people within this community that want to see it thrive. Too much time was spent in the plan discussing negative 

approach to regentrification in Mount Clemens- not necessary. Just prove these individuals wrong and remove the political element. I 

do agree however that there are many long-term "representatives" in our city that perhaps need to move along, or perhaps inject "new 

blood" in different demographics to offer a more "current" vision/approach. Also, has this plan been discussed with Mark Hackel and his 

team? Since they are also focused on developing Mt. Clemens and Macomb County in general, why not collaborate? Seems like there 

are political elements causing avoidance. One of the harder issues to discuss is blight. In order for people to change their opinion of Mt. 

Clemens, you need to focus on identifying areas that do not match the overall vision. i.e. Victory Inn, the "shopping center" behind and 

perhaps the many "shelters" that center around the downtown area. If this plan was first drafted in 2010, why is it just now being vetted 

and discussed for implementation? 6 years? I am hopeful that this will move forward. I could offer much more feedback to this plan but 

don't want to write a book. Please do not hesitate to reach out to me if you wish to discuss further.  

67



1

Brian Tingley

From: tesseract@gmx.us
Sent: Saturday, July 16, 2016 2:34 PM
To: Brian Tingley
Subject: [City of Mount Clemens Report An Issue] City Master Plan Draft -- and its impact our 

remaing Historic Buildings

Kenneth Teise, Resident (tesseract@gmx.us) sent a message using the contact form at 

http://cityofmountclemens.com/contact/City_of_Mount_Clemens_Report_An_Issue. Very good work, thanks. From my perspective, 

retaining what little remains of our historic buildings is key to successful revitalization of our city, both for quality-of-living and a long-

term financial benefits. Since the 1960s, the unique character of Mount Clemens has suffered most due to the destruction of our (albeit, 

challenging) old structures and replacing them with utilitarian, low-character structures (or parking lots). My concern, and it is based on 

seeing, first-hand, the pattern repeated countless times over the past 5 decades. Based on our past development ideas, which viewed 

our old structures as costly eyesores, or even liabilities, instead of one of the key underpinnings to solid and stable residential and 

business attraction. If the past 50 years has taught us anything, I hope it is the understanding that we need to retain what little remains 

of our unique foot-print; without such a vision, our creative planning and post-modern construction may not bring permanent 

revitalization. I would like to see a moratorium on destroying any of the few remaining pre-1900 buildings that remain -- entered as a 

restriction into the City Master Plan regarding any proposed developments. This is not as an extreme proposal as it may seem at face 

value. Given that we have retained a more status-quo approach over the past 50 years, and have lost over 95% of our historic sites in 

the process -- requiring that we retain the 5% that remains seems an extremely reasonable, and more-than-fair proposal. Given that 

most of the past loss of historic sites with the business owners' promises that new redevelopments over the sites would result in fiscal 

improvements has been false (or painfully short-lived, at best) -- such a proposal seems wise. Given that long-term (decades long) city 

revitalization and renewal, along with improved attraction for businesses and new residents, is based on quality-of-living issues -- that 

retaining our historic character to ensure such makes such a proposal something that deserves thoughtful consideration. Even without 

a moratorium (which, by the way, should not prevent allowing necessary upgrades or internal structural modification when necessary), 

there are key structures that I would like to see specifically noted as protected in the City Master Plan. Specifically: the old St. Mary's 

School buildings. Now that St. Mary's has relocated much of their school to what used to be my old grade school (Alexander Macomb), 

I am concerned that the old structures will be come completely vacant and disused. I do not want to see a repeat of what happened to 

the grand, pillared porch at St. Joseph Hospital -- where an out-of-state conglomerate made the decision to destroy and deface a 

landmark that most of we old-timers felt belonged to the citizens of Mount Clemens as one of our identifying and shared structures, in a 

very real emotional and quality-of-neighborhood sense. The urban blight resulting from our allowing the structure to be torn down, 

without valid community involvement in the decision, is spreading along that corridor of North Avenue, both north and south along the 

adjacent blocks. I mention this as a case-in-point -- because our short-term decisions that allow the destruction of our history as an 

attempt to ward off fiscal challenges actually increases the negative aspects of such in the long-term. Another example was how the old 

Mount Clemens Potter Building on Church Street (that ran from Groesbeck to the rail-road tracks) could have been restructured into an 

open-space, semi-indoor mall, similar to Trappers Alley in Greektown. Instead, it was replaced with the promise that new, modern 

businesses would be structured along the space, bringing revitalizing jobs, neighborhood appeal, and tax revenue to the city. Instead, 

there are numerous, low-expense built cinder-block buildings that tend to retain only short-term business leasing (several of which are 

68



2

continually empty and looking for new tenants). In addition, the total lack of creative-structure zoning has made the utilitarian and 

unattractive lots an actual detriment toward creating an area that appeals to long-term business owners or any motivation for residents 

living nearby to improve their neighborhoods. I do appreciate, very much so, that the City Master Plan is looking at creative ways to 

ensure the survival, and ultimate thriving, of what remains of the old section of our old St. Joseph Hospital building. I like the idea of 

university, science, art, creative, or community-social use of such. Likewise, the idea for a possible modern, health facility incorporating 

the appeal of natural and preventative care (a cutting edge and advancing field of our medical profession). The idea put forth in the Plan 

as having a senior facility as a possible option seems good to -- my only caveat being that such a facility should incorporate those 

aspects that enhance our city's unique character: specifically, incorporate the more modern aspects of wholesome foods, bright and 

open spaces for the seniors, as well as life-quality services like physical-therapy and small shops like barber, hair-dressing, physical 

therapy, and art-hobby "class-rooms" for the senior residents. In the very-near surrounding areas, there exists far too many, old-

fashioned, low-quality of living facilities for seniors. If we were to establish one in the old St. Joseph building, ours should be cutting 

edge and on the thriving side of the advancing aspects of this medical-service field -- such would fit very well into the historic and future 

personality of our special city. Another little neighborhood area that would be physically perfect for creative redevelopment ideas is the 

intersection hub where several of our streets converge: Cass Avenue, Grand Avenue, Floral, Mary, and the rail-road tracks. There are 

several new business owners that have recently relocated to the area and are doing good things to improve and advance the 

neighborhood (John's Family Restaurant, the Fire Station restaurant and bar, and Krause Florist that relocated from Groesbeck, to 

name just a few). These, along with the several other new business that have leased other units is helping to grow this little hub as a 

destination for residents as well as those who communte along Cass to and from the downtown businesses and county offices. A little 

(maybe a lot) long-term planning, along with the historic Edison-associated train-station, could help the continued health and growth of 

the existing business climate at this location. I personally envision a concept similar to one I know of in Florida (the city of Dunedin) -- a 

thriving community. It too has railroad tracks intersecting with a clutch of small businesses. They incorporated the Pinellas Trail (a no-

motor walking, biking, rollerblading paved trail that runs through the whole county. That trail took years to develop, connecting pieces 

that existed or were developed across all cities in the county. We could begin the same. We already have a trail that run through the 

parks along Wellington Crescent and outward toward the lake. Given a workable negotiated partnership with the railroad, we could 

create a similar physical fitness trail along that stretch of railroad -- eventually connecting with the existing trails farther north in our 

other county parks of Shelby and such. The trail in Florida is very active, and brings many residents to the Dunedin area. They created 

a bit of a train motif, and we could do similar due to our train station. They incorporated an unused train-car (of which we have plenty), 

into a small bike rental, roller-blade rental, and ice-cream shop right next to the trail. This attracts countless fitness folks, and brings 

hungry folks out to enjoy the sunshine and spend money at the shops and restaurants next to this hub. That little part of our 

neighborhood is perfect for a similar approach(albeit, it will take long-term planning, possibly in little stages, seeding an attractive and 

attracting environment in that spot). The only thing I would hope any interested developers would take seriously -- keep that small 

section of remaining old brick street that is on the Mary Street side of the tracks. Those old brick street sections do more to positively 

advance a historic and attractive appeal to the area than the miles of post-modern, press-and-form tiling that replaced much of it in our 

downtown. If any small steps in this area prove beneficial, we could consider building a half-dozen (at most) creative little rail-road 

chalet-like buildings along the Mary Street side of that brick street section, and along the other side of Cass, along the proposed fitness 

trail. These would be, for attractive-appeal, cost, and limited space reasons, very-very small square footage structures -- for over-

counter food and dessert type vendors, etc.) By the way, finding a cooperative partnership with the railroad, as we extend this Macomb 

County fitness trail ("McFit" or whatever creative promotional name the planners can think of) northward, it would bring out the 

pedestrian residential traffic all along it -- helping to attract and keep quality residents. As such, a similar little hub might become 

69



3

feasible up and down the area along spots like where the old, currently disused rail-track section curves from Elisabeth Road and 

around to North Avenue and out beyond Gratiot toward Selfridge. A tie-in to the historic train rides that are offered along this stretch 

could help revitalize that area too -- especially improving the park area long Joy Blvd. Excuse my long-winded attempt at historical 

context (just a few of the many ideas given with too much rambling on my part), but my attempt it to help support you in your long-term 

vision towards improving the quality of life and unique character that is our home town of Mount Clemens.  

70



EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – September 6, 2016 

Agenda Item No. 9-B 

APPROVE PURCHASES AND PAYMENT OF INVOICES 

 

VENDOR 
(PURCHASES) 

DESCRIPTION FUND/ 
DEPARTMENT/ 
APPROPRIATION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

AMOUNT CURRENT 
BALANCE 

1. Nickel & Saph, Inc. 
   44 Macomb Place 
   Mount Clemens, MI 48043 

2016-2017 
Comprehensive 
Liability 
Coverage 

General Fund 
Dial-A-Ride Fund 
Parking Fund 
Sewer Fund 
Water Fund 
Sanitation Fund 
Equipment Fund 
Equipment Fund 

101-85100-928000 
211-29000-928000 
585-54600-928000 
590-53703-928000 
591-53703-928000 
596-52100-928000 
661-44100-927000 
661-44100-928000 

$333,978.00 
 

$27,111.83 
(Pollution) 

 
$24,829.29 

(Bridges) 

$129,930.00 
$9,000.00 

5,000.00 
$80,000.00 
$80,000.00 

$1,500.00 
$70,000.00 
$9,727.00 

2.Everstream GLC Holding Company, LLC 
   Great Lakes Comnet 
   1228 Euclid Avenue, Suite 250 
  Cleveland, OH 44115 

Fiber Cable 
Connection 
Between City Hall 
And Fire 
Department 

General Fund/ 
Information  
Technology/ 
Contractual Services 

101-22800-818000 $14,535.05 $67,172.50 

3. Watertap, Inc. 
   56720 McKenzie 
   South Lyon, MI 48178 

Valve Insertion and 
Line Stop Services 
Force Account 
(as needed, if needed) 

Water-Utilities/ 
Transmission/ 
Contractual Services 

591-53704-818000 $114,600.00 $173,736.08 

4. Madden Manufacturing, Inc. 
   P.O. Box 387 
   Elkhart, IN 46515 

Diaphragm Metering 
Pump 

Sewer-Utilities Fund/ 
Operation of Plant/ 
Machinery and  
Equipment 

590-53708-982000 $2,420.00 $92,262.30 

 

  

71



 

VENDOR 
(INVOICES) 

DESCRIPTION FUND/ 
DEPARTMENT/ 
APPROPRIATION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

AMOUNT CURRENT 
BALANCE 

1.IDEXX 
   One Idexx Drive 
   Westbrook, MA   04092 

Testing Supplies 
Needed by the 
Water Plant 

Water-Utilities Fund/ 
Operation of Plant/ 
Testing Supplies 

591-53708-749000 $1,602.34 $11,848.29 

2. City Services, Inc. 
    3175 Union Street SE 
    Grand Rapids, MI 49548 

6” Valve Insertion 
At Robertson and 
Floral 

Water-Utilities Fund/ 
Transmission/ 
Contractual Services 

591-53704-818000 $4,500.00 $173,736.08 

3. Leslie Tire Service, Inc. 
   41600 Executive Drive 
   Harrison Township, MI 48045 

Miscellaneous tires 
And tire supplies 
Needed between 
07/29/16-08/24/16. 

Various Various $1,843.00 Various 

4.Pollard Water 
   200 Atlantic Avenue 
   New Hyde Park, NY 11040-5057 

Emergency 
Automatic 
Flushing  
Device 

Water-Utilities Fund/ 
Transmission/ 
Water Pipe and 
Fittings 

591-53704-789000 $4,021.00 $7,714.81 

5.One Beacon Insurance Group 
   751 Arbor Way 
   Suite 260 
   Blue Bell, PA  19422 

Deductible portion 
Of a claim; Dial-A- 
Ride Bus damage at 
Vick’s Funeral Home 

Dial-A-Ride Fund/ 
Liability Insurance 

211-29000-928000 $2,450.00 $9,000.00 

 

SUBMITTED BY:   Linda A. Kunath, Finance Director/Treasurer 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approve purchases and payment of invoices as presented. 

 

72



_\J,\11 11'\G ADDRESS: 

P.O. L30X -16907 
MT. C'Ll.:MENS. Ml -180-l6-6907 

August 9, 2016 

Ms. Terese G. Lucci 

City of Mount Clemens 

One Crocker Boulevard 

Mount Clemens, Ml 48043 

NICKEL & SAPH, INC. 
INSURANCE SINCE 1929 

Re: Property & liability Insurance Renewal 

Dear Ms. Lucci: 

OFf-ICE ADDRESS: 

+t MACOMB PLACE 
MT. CLEMENS. Ml +80-13 

(586) 463--1573 • (8 IO) 765-8885 
1-800-6'57-7373 

FAX: (586) -163-3135 

In anticipation of the September 1, 2016 renewal of the property and liability coverages secured 

by the City, please accept the following renewal summary and accompanying proposal. 

In developing the renewal this year, we started by contracting the services of an independent 

property appraisal firm, HCA Asset Management, LLC (HCA), to inspect all of the City's buildings and 

structures in an effort to develop contemporary replacement cost values. It is important that accurate 

values are reflected as the City is obligated, under the replacement cost valuation provisions of the 

property policy, to insure buildings and contents for replacement values. If replacement values are not 

reflected, coinsurance penalties may apply (reducing the amount of payment for a loss). Nickel & Saph 

incurred the expense for the appraisal ($8,400.00). Copies of the completed appraisal have been 

delivered to you under separate cover. 

The results of the appraisal plus the addition of the new electronic sign, the warning sirens, and 

artworks in Wilson and Rotary Parks reflected a total value of $125,147,749. The expiring property limit 

was $70,738,463. By encompassing the results of the appraisa l into the coverage afforded for the 

renewal, the property values have increased $54,409,286 or 76.92%. Beyond the benefit of accurate 

replacement values, the coverage afforded to the City have been enhanced as the one-hundred and 

twenty (120) percent margin limitation has been removed from the policy; all properties are insured for 

the full, declared blanket limit whereas last year, each building was capped at one-hundred and twenty 

(120) percent of the individual building value. 

·~t85 

73



The annual renewal premium offered by Atlantic is $333,978 including Terrorism Coverage. This 

reflects an increase of $30,560 or 10.07%. This amount reflects a $5,000 property deductible. Based 

upon conversations with city administrators, the decision to increase the property deductible from 

$1,000 to $5,000 was accepted in an attempt to offset the increase in premium related to the 

corresponding increase in property values. The premium is payable in quarterly installments with no 

service charge or interest applicable. 

Beyond the increase in property values, the rateable expenditures from the City's current 

budget increased from last year's $6,327,629 to $6,829,616. An increase of $501,987 or 7.93%. The 

annualized premiums by year for the past four (4) years have been: 

2012 - $299,982; 2013 - $283,013; 2014 - $292,060; and 2015 - $303,418. 

The $10,000 deductibles applicable to general liability, public officials', automobile liability, and 

employment practices liability claims have been retained. The Atlantic proposal reflects occurrence and 

aggregate liability limits of $10,000,000. It is our opinion that the $10,000,000 limits offered by Atlantic 

are sufficient limits for the City, particularly in light of the absence of direct policing services afforded by 

the community. 

With the appraisal, Atlantic is now affording property coverage for the City's docks and courtesy 

electrical outlets along the riverfront. This exposure was not covered in the past. The value reflected in 

the appraisal is $1,243,300. Undefined or undesignated underground items are still not being covered 

for property loss (coverage afforded for scheduled pump and lift stations but not for underground storm 

or sanitary sewer lines, etc.). 

Please recall that prior to 2009, the City paid the prior carrier an annual premium of $311,615. 

The $311,615 reflected a program that required the City to satisfy a $75,000 retention for covered 

liability claims in lieu of the current $10,000 deductible required by Atlantic. 

In addition to the coverages offered by Atlantic, the City secures separately, two (2) other 

policies: 

Pollution Liability: The term premium presented last year for a three (3) year policy term was 

$27,111.83 including Surplus Lines Fees. This current three (3) year term renewed on September 1, 

2015. This is a Claims Made policy affording a Retroactive Date of September 1, 2009. This premium 

was paid in full in 2015 for the entire three (3) year term. There will no expense for this policy until 

2018. 

Property Coverage for Bridges: The annual renewal premium is presented in an amount of $24,829 plus 

a $60 Broker Fee. The expiring gross annual premium was identical to the renewal offering. This policy 

affords $4,000,000 in coverage on each of the two (2) City owned bridges - Crocker Blvd./Cass Ave. 

Bridge and Dickinson St./Market St. Bridge. In addition to these two (2) bridges, the Shady Side Park 

pedestrian bridge is insured for $515,000. 

74



Coverage for the bridges is afforded on an Actual Cash Value basis subject to the application of 80% 

coinsurance. A 2% deductible applies to covered claims with a minimum deductible of $100,000 

applicable to the vehicular bridges and a $10,000 minimum applicable to the pedestrian bridge. The 

bridges were not included in the HCA appraisal. 

Atlantic is an admitted carrier (participates in the State of Michigan's Guarantee Fund) and is 

rated AX, Stable by A. M. Best. Please review this information and contact me with any questions or 

concerns. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

~((~~' 

Stephen R. Saph Jr. 

President 

Enclosure 

75



@VANTAGE FOR OB GOVERNMENT RISKS
PREMIER INSURANCE PROPOSAL
CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, MI

POLICY DATE:
September 01, 2016 thru
September 01, 2017

IN PARTNERSHIP WITH:
APEX INSURANCE AGENCY, INC.
111 W. JACKSON BLVD., SUITE 1502
CHICAGO, IL 60604

August 10, 2016

76



@VANTAGE FOR OB GOVERNMENT RISKS PREMIER
INSURANCE PROPOSAL

DATE August 10, 2016

BUSINESS CLIENT CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, MI

EFFECTIVE DATE September 01, 2016
EXPIRATION DATE September 01, 2017

QUOTE 1869028-9
RENEWAL OF 791-00-07-01-0002

IN PARTNERSHIP WITH APEX INSURANCE AGENCY, INC.
111 W. JACKSON BLVD., SUITE 1502
CHICAGO, IL 60604

YOUR ACCOUNT
MANAGEMENT TEAM

ONEBEACON INSURANCE Sandi Castilleja

UNDERWRITING COMPANY Atlantic Specialty Insurance Company

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                1                   
77



Additional Terms, Conditions, and Underwriter Comments:

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                2                   
78



ABOUT ONEBEACON GOVERNMENT RISKS

OneBeacon Government Risks offers a customizable menu of solutions to provide tailored protection for 
municipalities, counties and special districts including water and sanitation, non-rail transit authorities and other 
publicly funded agencies.  We understand the unique and evolving responsibilities of protecting a community and
the people who serve it, and we are here to help minimize risk, resolve claims and make your entity a safer place
to live and work.
Your @vantage for Government Risk proposal is tailored to provide coverage that meets your specific needs. Our
product includes property, casualty and professional coverages offered on a fully insured, deductible or self-
insured retention basis.
As a member of the OneBeacon Insurance Group, our products are written by "A" rated companies, with
specialized skills and dedicated industry specific expertise all supported by superior service.
Additional information about the OneBeacon Government Risks is provided at
www.onebeacongov.com

ABOUT ONEBEACON

OneBeacon Insurance Group, Ltd. is a Bermuda-domiciled holding company that is publicly traded on the New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol "OB".  The company's financial strength ratings are as follows:

A.M. Best:  "A" (Excellent, the third highest of 16 ratings), class X
Moody's:  "A3" (Good, the sixth highest of 21 ratings)
Standard & Poor's:  "A-" (Strong, the seventh highest of 21 ratings)
Fitch:  "A" (Strong, the sixth highest of 19 ratings)

These ratings relate to the underwriting companies supporting OneBeacon's businesses. White Mountains
Insurance Group, Ltd. is the majority owner.
OneBeacon's underwriting companies offer a range of specialty insurance products sold through
independent agencies, regional and national brokers, wholesalers and managing general agencies.
Each business is managed by an experienced team of specialty insurance professionals focused
on a specific customer group or industry segment, and providing distinct products and tailored
coverages and services. OneBeacon's solutions target group accident; commercial surety; crop;
design professionals; entertainment, sports and leisure; environmental; excess property;
financial services; healthcare; management liability; ocean and inland marine; programs;
public entities; technology; and tuition refund.   For further information about our products and services
visit www.onebeacon.com and to remain up to date on OneBeacon's news, follow us on Twitter
@OneBeaconIns or visit our online newsroom: www.onebeacon.com/newsroom.

Additional information about the OneBeacon Insurance Group is provided at
www.onebeacon.com

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                3                   
79



ONEBEACON GOVERNMENT RISKS RISK CONTROL

At OneBeacon Government Risks, we believe in providing our customers with the best possible tools and 
resources to help make their entities a safer place to live and work.  To protect your critical resources, it pays to
be proactive and strategic when it comes to risk.  Injuries, accidents, and other losses result in immediate
expenses, interruptions of programs and can negatively impact a community's confidence in your services.
Our risk management services are designed to deliver flexible, innovative and high quality solutions for
the unique risks public entities face and to educate and help support your existing risk management
program.  Our experienced team works exclusively with government entities and can help implement
real-world risk control practices for emerging issues and provide the tools, programs and resources to
help face evolving challenges. Available tools can include risk management guides, drivers training
courses, safety and liability training seminars and OneBeacon Government Risks' Online Training Center.

Risk Management Guides
Our informational Risk Management Guides cover a wide variety of topics that our customers have
indicated matter to them.  Topics include but are not limited to:

Defending Your Actions in a Lawsuit
Skate Parks: Friend or Foe?
Law Enforcement
Creating and Implementing a Risk Management Program

Risk Management Seminars

We also have free risk control seminars available on such topics as law enforcement liability, sexual harassment
and other training programs designed to enhance public entity risk control education.
Online Training Center

OneBeacon Government Risks is also proud to provide your entity access to our robust Online Training Center. 
This hosted and customized online learning tool provides our clients with a comprehensive learning management
system.

The training center is populated with 30 core courses that are meaningful to you and your employees, 
categorized to help learners and administrators clearly identify the courses most beneficial to each job function.

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                4                   
80



ONEBEACON GOVERNMENT RISKS CLAIMS

You can rely on the specialized skills of OneBeacon Government Risks experienced claims specialists to 
consistently deliver superior claims service.  Our claims professionals are a dedicated team who respond only to 
your government entity claims.  Working with our team means instant access to the breadth of industry expertise
and understanding of the nuances of government claims, both state and federal, including tort caps, immunities,
special defenses, and civil rights statutes including 42 USCA 1983.
CLAIM REPORTING OPTIONS

With OneBeacon Government Risks, we provide multiple claim reporting options to meet your needs.

1.  Submit your claim online at  www.onebeacongov.com

2.  Email your claim to OBGRCLAIMS@onebeacongov.com

3.  Phone in your claim at anytime to 877-284-5602

4.  Fax in your claim to 866-894-1633

After a claim is reported, appointed agents or brokers may access the OneBeacon Agent Portal for status
updates including claim number assignment, claim adjuster contact information, and claim file notes.

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                5                   
81



@vantage for OB Government Risks Premier Quote Proposal

Premium Summary for CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, MI

Coverage
Coverages  Premium

Property Coverages                  $165,220
Terrorism Coverage                    $8,995

Liability Coverages                   $28,704
Terrorism Coverage                      $861

Inland Marine Coverages                    $3,688

Automobile Coverages                   $77,107

Professional Liability Coverages                   $12,350

Excess Liability Coverages                   $36,686
Terrorism Coverage                      $367

Premium When Excluding Terrorism Coverage                  $323,755

Premium When Including Terrorism Coverage                  $333,978

Note: Policyholder Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage amount does not include auto because the
automobile line of insurance is not part of the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act (TRIPRA).

Payment Plan
Agency Bill - 4 Pay - 25% Deposit

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                6

 

 

                   
82



SCHEDULE OF LOCATIONS

Loc  Bldg Address
1 1 CONTROL FILTER BUILDING 35570 JEFFERSON AVE

HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

2 SETTLING 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
BASINS/FLOCCULATION HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

3 OZONE GENERATION 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

4 SLUDGE DRYING BEDS 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

5 EQUALIZATION BASIN 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

6 LAKE PUMP STATION 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

7 BACKWASH/HIGH SERVICE 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
PUMP STATION HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

8 BLEACH BUILDING 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

9 UNDERGROUND RESERVOIR 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

10 CHEMICAL BUILDING 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

11 SHED 35570 JEFFERSON AVE
HARRISON TWP, MI 48045-3248

2 1 WATER TOWER 175 MADISON AVE
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1642

3 1 CONTROL BUILDING 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

2 PRELIMINARY/FILTER 1750 CLARA ST
BUILDING MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                7

 

                   
83



Loc  Bldg Address

3 OXIDATION DITCH 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

4 CLARIFIER 1 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

5 CLARIFIER 2 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

6 RAS PUMP STATION 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

7 CHLORINE CONTACT/UV 1750 CLARA ST
DISINFECTION MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

8 SLUDGE HOLDING (FORMER 1750 CLARA ST
DIGESTERS) MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

9 MAINTENANCE BUILDING 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

10 GENERATOR BUILDING 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

11 SLUDGE HANDLING/SLUDGE 1750 CLARA ST
STORAGE MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

12 OUTFALL 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

13 POLE BARN 1750 CLARA ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5806

4 1 RETENTION BASIN 31 AVERY ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5900

2 RETENTION BASIN/MAIN PUMP 31 AVERY ST
HOUSE MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5900

3 RETENTION 31 AVERY ST
BASIN/GENERATOR/CHEMICA MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5900
L BLDG

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                8                   
84



Loc  Bldg Address

4 RETENTION BASIN CONTROL 31 AVERY ST
BLDG UNDERGRD PS MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5900

5 RETENTION BASIN STORAGE 31 AVERY ST
BUILDING MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5900

5 1 LIFT STATION 20 WELLINGTON CRESCENT
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

6 1 LIFT STATION 19 BREITMEYER PL
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-2163

7 1 PUMP STATION 264 N WILSON BLVD
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1558

8 1 LIFT STATION 53 N. GROESBECK
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

9 1 DPW - MAIN BUILDING 95 ELDREDGE ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5402

2 SALT BARN 95 ELDREDGE ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5402

3 COLD STORAGE 95 ELDREDGE ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5402

10 1 COMMUNITY CENTER 300 N GROESBECK HWY
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1545

2 WARNING SIREN 300 N GROESBECK HWY
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1545
Special Class: All Property in the Open-Masonry, Metal, non comb

11 1 MEMORIAL PARK-BALLFIELDS 190-199 LAFAYETTE
ETC MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1517

2 PRESS BOX/DUGOUTS 190-199 LAFAYETTE
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1517

3 PAVILION 190-199 LAFAYETTE
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1517

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                9                   
85



Loc  Bldg Address

4 RESTROOM BUILDING 190-199 LAFAYETTE
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1517

5 RESTROOM BUILDING/PRESS 190-199 LAFAYETTE
BOX MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1517

12 1 ANTO ART CENTER 125 MACOMB PL
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5650

13 1 RAILROAD MUSEUM 200 GRAND AVE
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5412

14 1 RESTROOM BUILDING 155 SHADYSIDE DR
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

2 PAVILION 155 SHADYSIDE DR
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

15 1 FIRE DEPARTMENT 2 DICKINSON ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5923

16 1 CITY HALL 1 CROCKER BLVD
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-2525

17 1 GAZEBO CLINTON RIVER
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

18 1 PARK-N-RIDE 141 N.B. GRATIOT
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

19 1 BATHHOUSE 126 N B GRATIOT
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

20 1 ICE ARENA 200 N GROESBECK HWY
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1503

21 1 DIAL-A-RIDE GARAGE 97 ELDREDGE ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5402

22 1 LIFT STATION 303 N. ROSE
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                10                   
86



Loc  Bldg Address
23 1 SEWER LIFT STATION 24491 N RIVER RD

MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-1900

24 1 CROCKER METER PIT CROCKER BLVD. & METRO
HARRISON TOWNSHIP, MI 48045

25 1 CLOCK N. MAIN & NEW ST.
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

26 1 PLAYSCAPE 58 S WILSON BLVD
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-2146

2 BRONZE SCULPTURE OF THREE 58 S WILSON BLVD
CHILDREN MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-2146

3 WILSON GYMNASIUM 58 S WILSON BLVD
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-2146

27 1 OLSEN PARK 850 HARRINGTON
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

28 1 PLGRND EQUIP, ICE RINK, DICKINSON PLACE & LAWNDALE ST.
PICNIC TABLES MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

29 1 PLAYGROUND/ICE RINK LEONORE ST. & DOROTHEA ST.
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

30 1 MALL FOUNTAIN WITH 58 MACOMB PL
PAVILION, BENCHES MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5636

31 1 ELECTRIC SIGN 120 NB GRATIOT AVE.
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

32 1 ROTARY PARK 47 N MAIN ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5631

2 ROTARY PARK 47 N MAIN ST
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-5631

33 1 WARNING SIREN 120 WELLINGTON CRESCENT
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

34 1 RIVER BOARDWALK (DOCKS, RIVERFRONT

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                11                   
87



Loc  Bldg Address
OUTLETS, ETC) MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                12                   
88



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Building $104,275,849

1 1     $5,000 RC
1 2     $5,000 RC
1 3     $5,000 RC
1 4     $5,000 RC
1 5     $5,000 RC
1 6     $5,000 RC
1 7     $5,000 RC
1 8     $5,000 RC
1 9     $5,000 RC
1 10     $5,000 RC
1 11     $5,000 RC
2 1     $5,000 RC
3 1     $5,000 RC
3 2     $5,000 RC
3 3     $5,000 RC
3 4     $5,000 RC
3 5     $5,000 RC
3 6     $5,000 RC
3 7     $5,000 RC
3 8     $5,000 RC
3 9     $5,000 RC
3 10     $5,000 RC
3 11     $5,000 RC
3 12     $5,000 RC
3 13     $5,000 RC
4 1     $5,000 RC
4 2     $5,000 RC
4 3     $5,000 RC
4 4     $5,000 RC
4 5     $5,000 RC
5 1     $5,000 RC
6 1     $5,000 RC
7 1     $5,000 RC
8 1     $5,000 RC
9 1     $5,000 RC
9 2     $5,000 RC
9 3     $5,000 RC

10 1     $5,000 RC
10 2     $5,000 RC
11 1     $5,000 RC
11 2     $5,000 RC

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                13                   
89



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
11 3     $5,000 RC
11 4     $5,000 RC
11 5     $5,000 RC
14 1     $5,000 RC
14 2     $5,000 RC
15 1     $5,000 RC
16 1     $5,000 RC
17 1     $5,000 RC
18 1     $5,000 RC
19 1     $5,000 RC
20 1     $5,000 RC
21 1     $5,000 RC
22 1     $5,000 RC
23 1     $5,000 RC
24 1     $5,000 RC
25 1     $5,000 RC
26 1     $5,000 RC
26 2     $5,000 RC
26 3     $5,000 RC
27 1     $5,000 RC
28 1     $5,000 RC
29 1     $5,000 RC
30 1     $5,000 RC
31 1     $5,000 RC
32 1     $5,000 RC
32 2     $5,000 RC
33 1     $5,000 RC
34 1     $5,000 RC

Business Personal Property  $18,304,200
1 1     $5,000 RC
1 2     $5,000 RC
1 3     $5,000 RC
1 4     $5,000 RC
1 5     $5,000 RC
1 6     $5,000 RC
1 7     $5,000 RC
1 8     $5,000 RC
1 10     $5,000 RC
1 11     $5,000 RC
2 1     $5,000 RC

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                14                   
90



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
3 1     $5,000 RC
3 2     $5,000 RC
3 3     $5,000 RC
3 4     $5,000 RC
3 5     $5,000 RC
3 6     $5,000 RC
3 7     $5,000 RC
3 8     $5,000 RC
3 9     $5,000 RC
3 11     $5,000 RC
3 12     $5,000 RC
3 13     $5,000 RC
4 1     $5,000 RC
4 2     $5,000 RC
4 3     $5,000 RC
4 4     $5,000 RC
4 5     $5,000 RC
5 1     $5,000 RC
6 1     $5,000 RC
7 1     $5,000 RC
8 1     $5,000 RC
9 1     $5,000 RC
9 3     $5,000 RC

10 1     $5,000 RC
15 1     $5,000 RC
16 1     $5,000 RC
19 1     $5,000 RC
21 1     $5,000 RC
22 1     $5,000 RC
23 1     $5,000 RC
24 1     $5,000 RC
26 3     $5,000 RC

Hardware and Media     $466,248
1 1     $5,000 FRC
1 2     $5,000 FRC
1 3     $5,000 FRC
1 4     $5,000 FRC
1 5     $5,000 FRC
1 6     $5,000 FRC
1 7     $5,000 FRC

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                15                   
91



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
1 8     $5,000 FRC
1 9     $5,000 FRC
1 10     $5,000 FRC
1 11     $5,000 FRC
2 1     $5,000 FRC
3 1     $5,000 FRC
3 2     $5,000 FRC
3 3     $5,000 FRC
3 4     $5,000 FRC
3 5     $5,000 FRC
3 6     $5,000 FRC
3 7     $5,000 FRC
3 8     $5,000 FRC
3 9     $5,000 FRC
3 10     $5,000 FRC
3 11     $5,000 FRC
3 12     $5,000 FRC
3 13     $5,000 FRC
4 1     $5,000 FRC
4 2     $5,000 FRC
4 3     $5,000 FRC
4 4     $5,000 FRC
4 5     $5,000 FRC
5 1     $5,000 FRC
6 1     $5,000 FRC
7 1     $5,000 FRC
8 1     $5,000 FRC
9 1     $5,000 FRC
9 2     $5,000 FRC
9 3     $5,000 FRC

10 1     $5,000 FRC
10 2     $5,000 FRC
11 1     $5,000 FRC
11 2     $5,000 FRC
11 3     $5,000 FRC
11 4     $5,000 FRC
11 5     $5,000 FRC
12 1     $5,000 FRC
13 1     $5,000 FRC
14 1     $5,000 FRC
14 2     $5,000 FRC
15 1     $5,000 FRC

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                16                   
92



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
16 1     $5,000 FRC
17 1     $5,000 FRC
18 1     $5,000 FRC
19 1     $5,000 FRC
20 1     $5,000 FRC
21 1     $5,000 FRC
22 1     $5,000 FRC
23 1     $5,000 FRC
24 1     $5,000 FRC
25 1     $5,000 FRC
26 1     $5,000 FRC
26 2     $5,000 FRC
26 3     $5,000 FRC
27 1     $5,000 FRC
28 1     $5,000 FRC
29 1     $5,000 FRC
30 1     $5,000 FRC
31 1     $5,000 FRC
32 1     $5,000 FRC
32 2     $5,000 FRC
33 1     $5,000 FRC
34 1     $5,000 FRC

Business Income & Extra Expense     $500,000
1 1     Including Rental Value

Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 3     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 4     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                17                   
93



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 5     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 6     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 7     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 8     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 9     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 10     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

1 11     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

2 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                18                   
94



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 3     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 4     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 5     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 6     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 7     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 8     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 9     Including Rental Value

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                19                   
95



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 10     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 11     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 12     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

3 13     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

4 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

4 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

4 3     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

4 4     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                20                   
96



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

4 5     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

5 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

6 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

7 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

8 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

9 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

9 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

9 3     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                21                   
97



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
10 1     Including Rental Value

Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

10 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

11 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

11 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

11 3     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

11 4     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

11 5     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

12 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

13 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                22                   
98



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

14 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

14 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

15 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

16 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

17 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

18 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

19 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

20 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                23                   
99



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

21 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

22 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

23 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

24 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

25 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

26 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

26 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

26 3     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

27 1     Including Rental Value

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                24                   
100



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

28 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

29 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

30 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

31 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

32 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

32 2     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

33 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

34 1     Including Rental Value
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                25                   
101



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Waiting Period - 72 hours
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

Blanket Earthquake
Occurrence   $5,000,000
Annual Aggregate   $5,000,000

1 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 2 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 3 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 3 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 3 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 4 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 4 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 4 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 5 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 5 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 5 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                26                   
102



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
1 6 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 6 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 6 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 7 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 7 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 7 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 8 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 8 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 8 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 9 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 9 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 10 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 10 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 10 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
1 11 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
1 11 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
1 11 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
2 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                27                   
103



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
2 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
2 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 2 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 3 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 3 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 3 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 4 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 4 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 4 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 5 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 5 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 5 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 6 Earthquake - Building    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                28                   
104



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
3 6 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 6 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 7 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 7 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 7 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 8 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 8 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 8 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 9 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 9 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 9 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 10 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 10 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 11 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 11 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 11 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 12 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 12 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                29                   
105



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
3 12 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
3 13 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
3 13 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
3 13 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
4 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
4 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
4 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
4 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
4 2 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
4 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
4 3 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
4 3 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
4 3 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
4 4 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
4 4 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
4 4 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
4 5 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
4 5 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                30                   
106



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
4 5 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
5 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
5 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
5 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
6 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
6 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
6 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
7 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
7 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
7 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
8 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
8 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
8 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
9 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
9 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
9 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
9 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
9 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                31                   
107



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
9 3 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
9 3 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
9 3 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
10 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
10 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
10 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
10 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
10 2 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
10 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
11 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
11 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
11 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
11 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
11 3 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
11 3 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                32                   
108



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

11 4 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
11 4 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
11 5 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
11 5 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
12 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
12 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
13 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
13 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
14 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
14 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
14 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
14 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
15 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
15 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
15 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                33                   
109



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
16 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
16 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
16 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
17 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
17 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
18 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
18 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
19 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
19 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
19 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
20 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
20 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
20 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
21 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
21 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
21 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                34                   
110



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
22 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
22 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
22 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
23 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
23 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
23 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
24 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
24 1 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
24 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
25 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
25 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
26 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
26 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
26 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
26 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
26 3 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
26 3 Earthquake - Personal Property    $50,000
26 3 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                35                   
111



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
27 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
27 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
28 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
28 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
29 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
29 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
30 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
30 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
31 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
31 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
32 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
32 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
32 2 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
32 2 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                36                   
112



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
33 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
33 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks
34 1 Earthquake - Building    $50,000
34 1 Earthquake - Business Income and Extra

Expense    $50,000
Extended Period of Indemnity
90 days

Civil Authority Coverage - 4 Weeks

Blanket Flood
Occurrence   $5,000,000
Annual Aggregate   $5,000,000

1 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 2 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 3 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 3 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 3 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 4 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 4 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 4 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 5 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 5 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 5 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 6 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 6 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 6 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 7 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 7 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 7 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                37                   
113



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
1 8 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 8 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 8 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 9 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 9 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 10 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 10 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 10 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
1 11 Flood - Building    $50,000
1 11 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
1 11 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
2 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
2 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
2 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 2 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 3 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 3 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 3 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 4 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 4 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 4 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 5 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 5 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 5 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 6 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 6 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 6 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 7 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 7 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 7 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 8 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 8 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 8 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 9 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 9 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 9 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 10 Flood - Building    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                38                   
114



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
3 10 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 11 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 11 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 11 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 12 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 12 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 12 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
3 13 Flood - Building    $50,000
3 13 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
3 13 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
4 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
4 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
4 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
4 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
4 2 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
4 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
4 3 Flood - Building    $50,000
4 3 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
4 3 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
4 4 Flood - Building    $50,000
4 4 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
4 4 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
4 5 Flood - Building    $50,000
4 5 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
4 5 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
5 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
5 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
5 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
6 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
6 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
6 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
7 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
7 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
7 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
8 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
8 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
8 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
9 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
9 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
9 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
9 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
9 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                39                   
115



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
9 3 Flood - Building    $50,000
9 3 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
9 3 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000

10 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
10 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
10 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
10 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
10 2 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
10 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
11 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
11 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
11 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
11 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
11 3 Flood - Building    $50,000
11 3 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
11 4 Flood - Building    $50,000
11 4 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
11 5 Flood - Building    $50,000
11 5 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
12 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
12 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
13 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
13 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
14 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
14 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
14 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
14 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
15 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
15 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
15 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
16 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
16 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
16 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
17 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
17 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
18 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
18 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
19 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
19 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
19 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
20 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
20 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                40                   
116



Property Blanket Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
20 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
21 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
21 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
21 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
22 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
22 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
22 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
23 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
23 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
23 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
24 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
24 1 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
24 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
25 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
25 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
26 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
26 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
26 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
26 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
26 3 Flood - Building    $50,000
26 3 Flood - Personal Property    $50,000
26 3 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
27 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
27 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
28 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
28 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
29 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
29 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
30 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
30 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
31 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
31 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
32 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
32 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
32 2 Flood - Building    $50,000
32 2 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
33 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
33 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000
34 1 Flood - Building    $50,000
34 1 Flood - Business Income & Extra Expense    $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                41                   
117



Property Location Coverages

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val

12 1 Building   $2,339,300     $5,000 ACV

13 1 Building     $228,400     $5,000 ACV

Property Policy Coverages

Coverage        Limit Deductible Val

Equipment Breakdown Portfolio
Expediting Expenses     $100,000
Hazardous Substances     $100,000
Perishable Goods     $100,000
CFC Refrigerants     $100,000
Business Income

Employee Theft     $300,000     $5,000

Forgery & Alteration     $100,000     $5,000

Computer Fraud     $300,000     $5,000

Limited Coverage for Backup of Sewers,     $5,000
Drains or Sumps
Annual Aggregate     $100,000

Property Policy Coverage Enhancements

Coverage        Limit Deductible Val

Bucket
Per Occurrence     $500,000
Personal Effects of Officers,
Partners & Employees

Valuable Information Property
Accounts Receivable
Outdoor Property
Fine Arts - Per Item      $10,000
Hardware and Media
Fire Extinguisher and Automatic
Extinguishing System Recharge

Emergency Response Service Charge
Conditional Sales Agreement

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                42                   
118



Property Policy Coverage Enhancements

Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Decreased value of Stock due to
Damage to another part or parts
of Stock

Tenants Improvements & Betterments
Electronic Data Damage or
Destruction from Inland Marine
Causes of Loss

Electronic Data Loss of Income and
Extra Expense from Inland Marine
Causes of Loss

Property in Transit     $5,000
Per Occurrence      $50,000

International Air Shipments     $5,000
Per Occurrence      $25,000

Property at Other Locations     $5,000
Per Occurrence      $50,000

Crime Limit of Insurance      $25,000     $5,000
Money and Securities
Money Orders and Counterfeit Paper
Currency

Inside the Premises - Robbery or
Safe Burglary of Other Property

Credit, Debit or Charge Card Forgery     $5,000
Per Occurrence       $5,000

Newly Acquired or Constructed Property     $5,000
Building   $2,000,000
Days          180

Personal Property   $1,000,000
Days          180

Claim Expense         $0
Per Occurrence      $50,000

Reward         $0
Per Occurrence      $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                43                   
119



Property Policy Coverage Enhancements

Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Contractual Penalties         $0

Per Occurrence      $50,000

Automatic Seasonal Increase (Peak     $5,000
Season)
Per Occurrence     $100,000

Brands and Labels Expense     $5,000
Per Occurrence      $50,000

Food Contamination     $5,000
Per Occurrence      $25,000

Newly Acquired Property Business
Income *
Per Occurrence     $250,000
Days          180

Extra Expense *     $100,000
Limits on Loss Payment
100%-100%-100%

Lessee's Leasehold Interest Coverage
Per Occurrence      $25,000

Business Income or Extra Expense Utility
Services Coverage *
Per Occurrence      $25,000
Water, Power (Not Including
Overhead Transmission Lines),
Communication (Not Including
Overhead Transmission Lines)

Dependent Properties *
Per Occurrence     $100,000

Lessor's Lease Cancellation **
Per Occurrence      $25,000

Lessor's Tenant Relocation Expense **
Per Occurrence      $25,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                44                   
120



Property Policy Coverage Enhancements

Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Limited Coverage for Fungus, Wet Rot,     $5,000
Dry Rot and Bacteria
Annual Aggregate      $15,000

Electronic Data Damage or Destruction -     $5,000
Cyber Vandalism - Employee
Annual Aggregate      $50,000

Electronic Data Damage or Destruction -     $5,000
Cyber Vandalism - Non-Employee
Annual Aggregate      $10,000

Electronic Data Loss of Income and Extra
Expense - Cyber Vandalism - Employee
Annual Aggregate      $50,000
Waiting Period - 72 hours

Electronic Data Loss of Income and Extra
Expense - Cyber Vandalism - Non-
Employee
Annual Aggregate      $10,000
Waiting Period - 72 hours

Denial of Service Coverage
Annual Aggregate      $10,000

California Hardware, Media and     $5,000
Electronic Data Earthquake
Per Occurrence     $100,000

Preservation of Property - Expense         $0
Per Occurrence      $50,000

Lock Replacement
Per Occurrence      $10,000

Catastrophe Allowance         $0
Annual Aggregate      $50,000

Expediting Expenses         $0
Per Occurrence      $50,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                45                   
121



Property Policy Coverage Enhancements

Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Soft Costs         $0

Per Occurrence      $25,000

Temporary Relocation of Property         $0
Coverage During Renovation or
Remodeling
Per Occurrence     $100,000
Days           90

Salesmen's Samples     $5,000
Per Occurrence      $25,000

Green Upgrades Additional Coverage
Per Occurrence      $50,000
10% Green Upgrades Percentage

* This Coverage Extension to purchased
Business Income Coverage
or purchased Extra Expense Coverage
applies only to locations
where that purchased coverage is shown
in the Supplemental
Property Declarations.

** This Coverage Extension to purchased
Business Income Coverage
applies only to locations where that
purchased coverage is shown
in the Supplemental Property
Declarations.

Property Location Coverage Enhancements

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val

The following coverages are at each
Location/Building with Building Coverage
unless otherwise stated:

Building Ordinance Combined Coverages
B&C         $0
Coverage A included in Building

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                46                   
122



Property Location Coverage Enhancements

Loc   Bldg Coverage        Limit Deductible Val
Limit

Coverages B&C     $500,000

The following coverages are at each
Location/Building unless otherwise
stated:

Pollutant Clean Up and Removal     $100,000     $5,000

Debris Removal     $250,000     $5,000

Special Theft Limits of Insurance
Furs      $10,000     $5,000
Jewelry      $10,000     $5,000
Precious Metals      $25,000     $5,000
Stamps       $1,000     $5,000

Additional Terms, Conditions, and Underwriter Comments:

Flood. FEMA Flood Zones A and V are excluded. A physical address is required for every location so that a flood
zone can be determined prior to binding. If a flood zone cannot be determined, flood coverage will be excluded
from that location.

Optional Flood Coverage proposed does not apply to locations in flood zones. Flood zones are verified at policy
issuance. A Broad Water Exclusion will apply to Flood Zones.

Property deductible:  $5,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                47

 

                   
123



General Liability Policy Coverages

Coverage        Limit Deductible
General Aggregate   $2,000,000

Products/Completed Operation Aggregate   $2,000,000

Coverage A Bodily Injury and Property
Damage
Each Occurrence   $1,000,000

Coverage B Personal and Advertising   $1,000,000
Injury

Coverage A & B
Loss and Loss Expense Deductible    $10,000
Each Occurrence or Offense

Damage to Premises Rented to You
Each Occurrence     $100,000

Coverage C Health Care and Social
Services
Each Wrongful Act   $1,000,000
Deductible Each Wrongful Act    $10,000

Medical Expense  Not Covered

Failure to Supply
Each Occurrence     $100,000

Sexual Abuse
Each Occurrence   $1,000,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                48                   
124



General Liability Location Coverages

Premium
Loc   Bldg Coverage        Basis Deductible

Class: 44114
General purpose government risks
organized as cities, towns, townships,
villages or boroughs

1 1 Coverage A&B    $10,000

Class: 48727
Streets, Roads, Highways or Bridges -
existence and maintenance hazard only

1 1 Coverage A&B - Including Products    $10,000

General Liability Medical Payment Exclusion

All Locations and Buildings

Additional Terms, Conditions, and Underwriter Comments:

GRS GL 401 DEDUCTIBLE LIABILITY INSURANCE - LOSS & LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES applies.

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                49

 

 

                   
125



Professional Liability Policy Coverages

Coverage        Limit Deductible
Public Officials Errors & Omissions

Each Wrongful Act   $1,000,000    $10,000
Aggregate   $2,000,000

Public Officials Employment Practices
Each Offense   $1,000,000    $10,000
Aggregate   $2,000,000

Public Officials Employee Benefits
Administration
Each Offense   $1,000,000    $10,000
Aggregate   $2,000,000

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                50                   
126



Excess Liability Policy Coverages

Coverage        Limit
Excess Liability

Aggregate Limit   $9,000,000
All Claims excess of Underlying
Insurance

Each Claim   $9,000,000
Each Claim excess of Underlying
Insurance

Additional Terms, Conditions, and Underwriter Comments:

Excess limits go over the following coverages: General Liability, Professional Liability and Auto Liability.

This agreement is provided on a following-form basis designed to follow all of the provisions of the underlying
coverages with the following general exceptions: Pollution, Failure to Supply, Sexual Abuse and
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist.

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                51

 

                   
127



Automobile Policy Coverages

Coverage       Limit Deductible
Liability  $1,000,000    $10,000

Hired Auto
Hired Primary Auto Liability     Covered

Non-Owned Auto
Non-Owned Auto Liability     Covered

Broad Form Endorsement

Auto Composite Rate Coverages

Coverage       Limit Deductible
ALL LIGHT TRUCKS
(Vehicles: 31)
Liability
Collision
Comp
Med/PIP
UM/UIM

ALL HEAVY TRUCKS/TRUCK TRACTORS
(Vehicles: 10)
Liability
Collision
Comp
Med/PIP
UM/UIM

ALL FIRE TRUCKS
(Vehicles: 4)
Liability
Collision
Comp
Med/PIP
UM/UIM

ALL TRAILERS
(Vehicles: 4)
Liability
Collision
Comp

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                52                   
128



Auto Composite Rate Coverages

Coverage       Limit Deductible
Med/PIP

ALL NON-EMERGENCY PPT
(Vehicles: 1)
Liability
Collision
Comp
Med/PIP
UM/UIM

ALL OTHER BUSES (9-20 PASSENGER)
(Vehicles: 7)
Liability
Collision
Comp
Med/PIP
UM/UIM

Automobile State Coverages

Coverage       Limit Deductible
Michigan UM BI Non Stacked    $250,000

Automobile Vehicle Coverages

Veh Coverage       Limit Deductible
MI Composite Truck

(Vehicles: 31)
Liability
PIP        Nil
Property Protection Insurance         $0
Comprehensive     $1,000
Broadened Collision     $1,000
UM BI Non Stacked

MI Composite Truck
(Vehicles: 10)

Liability
PIP        Nil
Property Protection Insurance         $0
Comprehensive     $1,000
Broadened Collision     $1,000
UM BI Non Stacked

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                53                   
129



Automobile Vehicle Coverages

Veh Coverage       Limit Deductible

MI Composite Fire Department - All Other
(Vehicles: 4)

Liability
PIP        Nil
Property Protection Insurance         $0
Comprehensive     $1,000
Broadened Collision     $1,000
UM BI Non Stacked

MI Composite Trailer
(Vehicles: 4)

Liability
PIP        Nil
Property Protection Insurance         $0
Comprehensive     $1,000
Broadened Collision     $1,000

MI Composite Private Passenger
(Vehicles: 1)

Liability
PIP        Nil
Property Protection Insurance         $0
Comprehensive     $1,000
Broadened Collision     $1,000
UM BI Non Stacked

MI Composite Buses N.O.C.
(Vehicles: 7)

Property Protection Insurance         $0
Liability
PIP        Nil
Comprehensive     $1,000
Broadened Collision     $1,000
UM BI Non Stacked

Additional Terms, Conditions, and Underwriter Comments:

GRS CA 403 LOSS AND LOSS EXPENSE DEDUCTIBLE applies.
GRS CA 401 AGREED AMOUNT VALUATION - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE applies as expiring.

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                54

 

                   
130



Covered Auto Symbol(s)

1 - ANY AUTO
2 - OWNED AUTOS
5 - OWNED AUTOS SUBJECT TO NO-FAULT

Liability 1
Personal Injury Protection 5
Property Protection 5
Uninsured Motorists 2
Comprehensive 2
Collision 2

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                55

 

                   
131



Inland Marine Coverages

Loc  Bldg Coverage          Limit Deductible

Data Breach
Deductible Amount     $1,000
Any One Occurrence        $25,000
Annual Aggregate        $25,000
Additional Expense Coverage

Annual Aggregate Sublimits
Legal Services        $25,000
Public Relations        $25,000
Third Party Data Breach        $25,000
Data Extortion Ransom
Coverage        $25,000

Data Extortion Reward
Coverage        $25,000

Miscellaneous Articles       $209,804
Deductible Amount     $1,000
Description of Property:

$58,403 SCHEDULED EQUIPMENT;
$151,401 UNSCHEDULED LIGHTS &
SIRENS

Newly Acquired Miscellaneous Articles        $50,000
Pollutant Clean Up        $25,000
Debris Removal        $25,000
Preservation of Property - Expense
Coverage        $10,000
Days             30

Inventory or Appraisals        $10,000

Contractor's Equipment
Deductible Amount     $1,000
Description of Property:

$626,615 SCHEDULED EQUIPMENT PER
SCHEDULE ON FILE W/CO.

Valuation: Actual Cash Value
All Covered Property       $626,615
Additionally Acquired Equipment       $250,000

Days             60
Construction Documents         $2,500

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                56                   
132



Inland Marine Coverages

Loc  Bldg Coverage          Limit Deductible
Debris Removal         $5,000
Employee Tools and Clothing         $2,500
Pollutant Clean Up        $10,000
Preservation of Property - Expense
Coverage         $2,500
Days             30

Rental Expense Reimbursement         $2,500
Days              2

Leased, Rented or Borrowed
Contractors Equipment from Others
Any One Item        $50,000
All Items        $50,000

Your Contractor's Equipment Leased,
Rented or Borrowed by Others
Any One Item    Not Covered
All Items    Not Covered

Terrorism - Inland Marine

This proposal contains only a general description of the coverages and does not include all of the benefits, terms, conditions, exclusions and limitations
found in the policy.  The insurance policy itself, not this descriptive proposal, will form the contract between the insured and the insurance company.
Quote: 1869028-9

                                                                                                                                                                57                   
133



Atlantic Specialty Insurance Company
150 Royall Street
Canton, MA 02021

Insured Name and Address: Quote Number: 1869028-9
CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, MI
1 CROCKER BLVD
MOUNT CLEMENS, MI 48043-2525

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (the Act), as amended, you have a right to 
purchase insurance coverage for losses resulting from acts of terrorism, as defined in Section 102(1) of the Act:
The term “act of terrorism” means any act or acts that are certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in
consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United States - to be an act
of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have 
resulted in damage within the United States, or outside the United States in the case of an air carrier or vessel or 
the premises of a United States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals  as part of an
effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the
United States Government by coercion.

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT WHERE COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR LOSSES RESULTING
FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM,  SUCH LOSSES MAY BE PARTIALLY REIMBURSED BY THE
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT UNDER A FORMULA ESTABLISHED BY FEDERAL LAW.  HOWEVER, 
YOUR POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS
AN EXCLUSION FOR NUCLEAR EVENTS.  UNDER THE FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT
GENERALLY REIMBURSES 85% THROUGH 2015; 84% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2016; 83% BEGINNING 
ON JANUARY 1, 2017; 82% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2018; 81% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2019 AND 
80% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2020 OF COVERED TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE 
STATUTORILY ESTABLISHED DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY PROVIDING THE 
COVERAGE.  THE PREMIUM TO BE CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BELOW AND DOES 
NOT INCLUDE ANY CHARGES FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS THAT MAY BE COVERED BY THE FEDERAL 
GOVERNMENT UNDER THE ACT.

YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED, CONTAINS A
$100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S. GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS WELL AS INSURERS’ 
LIABILITY FOR LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM WHEN THE AMOUNT OF 
SUCH LOSSES IN ANY ONE CALENDAR YEAR EXCEEDS $100 BILLION.  IF THE AGGREGATE INSURED
LOSSES FOR ALL INSURERS EXCEED $100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE MAY BE REDUCED.

SELECTION OR REJECTION OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE
The prospective premium required for your terrorism coverage is: $ 10,223 .

If you wish to reject this offer of coverage, you should check the box below, sign this notice and send it to your

agent.  An exclusion of terrorism losses, as defined by the Act, will then be made part of your policy.

I hereby reject the offer of terrorism coverage.  I understand that I will have no
coverage for losses arising from acts of terrorism, as defined in the act.

PHN 001 IL 01 15 Contains copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission. Page 1 of 2
Copyright 2015,  OneBeacon Insurance Group LLC

134



If your policy includes Property Coverage in one or more of these states: CA, CT, GA, HI, IA, IL, MA, ME, 
MO, NC, NJ, NY, OR, PA, RI, VA, WA, WI, or WV; the following statement applies:

The terrorism exclusion makes an exception for (and thereby continues your coverage for) property fire losses 
resulting from an act of terrorism.  Therefore, if you reject the offer of terrorism coverage, that rejection does not 
apply to fire losses resulting from an act of terrorism - the coverage in your policy for such fire losses will continue.
If such a loss occurs, and is certified under the Act, the loss will be reimbursed by the United States Government
under the formula detailed above.

The portion of your policy premium attributable to terrorism (fire only) coverage in all of the states listed above, in 
which your policy provides property coverage, is                .  This amount is included in your policy
premium and cannot be rejected.

Atlantic Specialty Insurance Company
Policyholder/Applicant’s Signature Insurance Company

Print Name  Date

If you have any questions about this notice, please contact your agent.

PHN 001 IL 01 15 Contains copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission. Page 2 of 2
Copyright 2015,  OneBeacon Insurance Group LLC

$0

135



DATE: August 30, 2016 

City of Mount Clemens 
Finance Department 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Dempsey and City Commission 

CC: Lisa Borgacz, Interim City Manager 

FROM: Linda A. Kunath, Finance Director/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: Fiber cable connection between City Hall and Fire Department 

Macomb County Dispatch provides services to the City of Mount Clemens Fire Department. 
Communication is processed through the County Sheriff's sub-station at City Hall and routed to the Fire 
Department across the parking lot through a wireless antenna placed on both buildings. In order for the 
County to provide services like other Macomb County communities receive, such as Fire CAD, Mobile 
and RMS services, as well as a planned fire station alerting system, the communication connection 
must be secure and connected to the county's network. 

The best and most secure option is to link these buildings through a fiber cable. This permanent long
term solution will provide for communication with the County Dispatch as well as for City purposes like 
financial & email software, future voice connection when the phone system is upgraded, and will 
increase data speed. 

The City has reviewed options to upgrade the communication system with Macomb County, MISD, and 
consulted with IT contractor Hi-Tech. Proposals were provided by the County's fiber company, 
Everstream, formerly known as Comlink, and a proposal was provided by the MISD's fiber company 
Fiber Link. Everstream's proposal was less expensive, provides the necessary engineering and 
materials for construction, and this company most familiar with Macomb County's Sheriff sub-station 
and Dispatch connection, which they installed. 

Upon approval of this agenda item, installation of the fiber cable connection is expected to commence 
in 30 days. 

136



CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS 

Tabulation of quotations received for a fiber extension between City Hall and the Fire Department as required by Macomb County for 
dispatch services: 

BIDDER TOTAL COST 
I. Fiber Link, Inc. $19,575.05 

3529 West Genesee Road 
Suite 6 
Lapeer, MI 48446 

2.Everstream GLC Holding Company, LLC $14,535.05 
Great Lakes Conmet 
1228 Euclid Avenue 
Suite 250 
Cleveland, OH 44115 

Linda A. Kunath 

Treasurer/Finance Director 

137



Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC. 
& 

City of Mount Clemens 

Contract Conditions 

138



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

A. CONTRACT PRICE ......................................................................................................................... 4 

B. FORM OF PROPOSAL ..................................................................................................................... 4 

C. CONFORMITY TO PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ........................................................................ 4 

D. ~ENCT ............................................................................................ 4 

E. LEGALSTATUSOFBIDDER. .......................................................................................................... 4 

F. CERTIFIED CHECK, BIDDER'S BOND OR BANK DRAFT.. ............................................................ 5 

G. OBLIGATION TO EXECUTE CONTRACT ....................................................................................... 5 

H. DEFAULT OF CONTRACT .......................................................................................... 6 

I. BOND ............................................................................................................................................... 7 

J. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT ................................. 7 

K. EXAMINATION OF SITE ................................................................................................................ 11 

L. LEGAL CONDITIONS ................................................................................................................. 11 

M. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES ....................................................................................................... 11 

N. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ............................................................................................................. 12 

0. BIDDER'S ABILITY ......................................................................................................................... 12 

P PAYMENTS .................................................................................................................................... 12 

Q. RIGHT TO ACCEPT, REJECT AND TO WAIVE DEFECTS ................................................... 13 

R. PAY ITEMS ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

S. PROGRESS SCHEDULE ............................................................................................................... 13 

T. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CLAUSE . . . . . . . . ................................................. 13 

U. INTENT OF PLANS' SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT ................................................... 14 

1 

139



V. EXTRA WORK .......................................................................................................... 14 

W. ALTERATION IN CHARACTER OF WORK ....................................................................... 14 

X. COORDINATION OF SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS ........................................................ 15 

Y. THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ............................................................... 15 

Z. AUTHORITY OF CITY MANAGER. ................................................................................. 15 

AA. INSPECTION ............................................................................................................. 15 

AB. TIME AND SEQUENCE OF WORK ................................................................................ 16 

AC. CONSTRUCTION STAKES...................................... . . ......................................................... 16 

AD. MATERIALS FURNISHED BY THE CITY ....................................................................................... 17 

AE. STORED MATERIALS .................................................................................................................... 17 

AF. REJECTED MATERIALS ................................................................................................................ 17 

AG. REMOVAL OF MATERIALS ........................................................................................................... 17 

AH. WATER SUPPLY ............................................................................................................................ 18 

Al. SEWER LEADS .............................................................................................................................. 18 

AJ. SANITARY REGULATIONS ........................................................................................................... 18 

AK. BUILDINGS AND OTHER STRUCTURES ENCOUNTERED ......................................................... 18 

AL. PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY ................................................................. 18 

AM. RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE TO WORK ............................................................................... 19 

AN. PUBLIC SAFETY ............................................................................................................................ 19 

AO. NOTIFICATION TO UTILITIES ....................................................................................................... 20 

AP. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY WORK ................................................................................................... 20 

AQ. NIGHT WORK ................................................................................................................................ 20 

2 

140



AR. UNNOTICED DEFECTS ................................................................................................................. 20 

AS. USE OF PROJECT FOR CITY AS PROMOTIONAL TOOL ........................................................... 21 

AT. FINAL INSPECTION ................................................................................................... .21 

EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC CONTRACT ................................................... .22 

3 

141



A. CONTRACT PRICE 

Proposals are solicited on the basis of a ''nominal 
specification." Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall provide 
all equipment, labor and materials required for completion of 
the project in accordance with project specifications and/or 
contained on purchase order covering this contract. 

B. FORM OF PROPOSAL 

All proposals must be made on 
Additional copies of this proposal 
may be obtained on request from the 

the form attached hereto. 
form for the bidder's files 

Purchasing Department. 

All prices stated in the proposals must be plainly written in 
words as well as figures. 

All information called for on the proposal form must be 
furnished to enable a fair comparison of the bids. 

Each proposal must be enclosed in a sealed envelope addressed to 
the Purchasing Assistant and endorsed upon the outside with the 
name of the project as it appears in the advertisement for bids 
and/or ''Request for Proposals". 

C.CONFORMITY TO PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

Proposals 
set forth 
contained 
submitted 

must be made in full conformity to all conditions as 
in the plans and specifications for the work which are 
in the Request for Proposals, or which may be 

by bidders as part of their proposal. 

D.AGENCY 

Anyone signing a proposal 
submit with the proposal, 
so. 

E.LEGAL STATUS OF BIDDER 

as agent of another or others, must 
legal evidence of the authority to do 

The legal status of the bidder as a corporation, partnership, or 
an individual, must be stated in the proposal. A corporate 
bidder must name the state in which its articles of 
incorporation are held, and must give the title of the official 
having authority under the by-laws to sign contracts. A 

4 

142



partnership bidder must give the full names and addresses of all 
partners. 

F.CERTIFIED CHECK, BIDDER'S BOND OR BANK DRAFT 

Each proposal must be accompanied by a Certified Check, bidder's 
bond, bank draft or cash bond, in an amount not less than five 
( 5%) percent of the bid/ contract to the order of the City of 

Mount Clemens, as a guarantee of good faith on the part of the 
bidder and subject to the conditions stipulated in proposal 
form. 

No proposal shall be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days 
after the date set for the opening of bids. 

A single 
alternate 
submitted 

check, bond or draft may serve to cover two or more 
or supplemental proposals when such proposals are 

by the same bidder. 

The bid deposit of all except the three ( 3) lowest bidders on 
each component and/ or total of all projects shall be returned 
within two (2) weeks after opening the bids. The bid deposit of 
the three ( 3) lowest bidders on each component and/ or total of 
all projects shall be returned within forty-eight (48) hours 
after the required performance bonds and insurance have been 
furnished to the City, the contract documents have been approved 
by the City and signed by the parties to the contract, and the 
City has issued a Purchase Order covering the project to be 
completed. 

G.OBLIGATION TO EXECUTE CONTRACT 

The bidder whose proposal is accepted by the City shall be 
required to execute the contract, and to furnish sureties 
hereafter specified, within fourteen ( 14) days after receiving 
notice of such acceptance; and in case of refusal or failure of 
this bidder to do so, it shall be considered to have abandoned 
all rights and interests in the award, and the bid deposit 
submitted with the proposal may be in the City's sole 
discretion, declared to be forfeited to the City as liquidated 
damages and not as a penalty, and the contract may be awarded to 
another. 

H.DEFAULT OF CONTRACT 

5 

143



When, in the opinion of the City Manager, the work or any part 
of the work to be done under this Contract has been abandoned, 
is unnecessarily delayed, or cannot be completed at the rate of 
progress, or within the time specified, or the Ever stream GLC 
Holding Company LLC is willfully violating any of the covenants 
of this Contract or is carrying it out in bad faith, or has been 
adjudged as bankrupt, or if the Ever stream GLC Holding Company 
LLC should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditor 
of the Everstream, then the City Manager so certifies in writing 
to the City, and the City in writing may declare the Everstream 
GLC Holding Company LLC in default and so notify the Everstream 
GLC Holding Company LLC to discontinue the work. The City may 
then call upon the Sureties to complete the work, or may 
complete it by other means. The City may recover the cost of 
completing the work by deducting the amount from any monies due 
or which may become due the Everstream, and when such monies are 
insufficient to pay said cost, the amount of the cost in excess 
of such money shall be paid by the Everstream GLC Holding 
Company LLC or by the Surety. 

6 

144



I.BOND 

The successful bidder shall be required to furnish two (2) bonds 
as follows: 

1. A Performance Bond OR Irrevocable Letter of Credit in 
an amount not less than 100% of the contract price in 
favor of the City of Mount Clemens conditioned upon 
the faithful performance of the contract and 
completion on or before the date indicated and 
specified and conditioned upon issuance by surety or 
bonding company acceptable to the City of Mount 
Clemens. Performance Bond shall be executed on the 
form attached with these general conditions. 

2. Labor and Material Bond running to the City of Mount 
Clemens in an amount not less than 100% of the 
Contract price for the protection of sub-contractors, 
material suppliers and labor. 

3. General contractor /Ever stream GLC Holding Company LLC 
shall supply to the City, a Waiver of Lien for all 
materials and labor prior to requesting final payment 
on this project. 

4. The "Performance Bond" and 
shall be with a "Bonding" 
that is acceptable to the 
its sole discretion. 

"Labor and Material Bond" 
Surety company or carrier 
City of Mount Clemens, in 

J. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall, at its sole 
expense, defend the City of Mount Clemens against any and all 
claims arising out of its performance of the contract and shall 
indemnify and hold the City of Mount Clemens harmless from any 
such claim. The Hold Harmless Agreement shall be on Company 
letterhead and in a form acceptable to the City of Mount 
Clemens. A sample format is Attached (Appendix A) 

This format shall be followed to the letter except for the 
inclusion of the names of the parties to this document. 

At the time signed contracts are returned to the City of Mount 
Clemens, and prior to commencement of any work under the 

7 

145



Contract, the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall furnish 
to the City of Mount Clemens certificates of insurance showing 
that the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC has obtained, and 
they're currently in effect, insurance coverages described 
below. The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall not commence 
work under this contract until he has obtained the insurance 
required under this paragraph or as modified by specific 
contract or agreement documents. All coverages shall be with 
insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the 
State of Michigan AND shall be with insurance carriers that are 
acceptable to the City of Mount Clemens. 

1. Worker's Compensation Insurance: The Everstream GLC 
Holding Company LLC shall procure and maintain during 
the life of this contract, Worker's Compensation 
Insurance, including Employers Liability Coverage, in 
accordance with all applicable Statutes of the State 
of Michigan. 

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance: The Everstream 
GLC Holding Company LLC shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance on an ''Occurrence Basis" with 
limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and/or aggregate combined single limit, 
Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage. 
Coverage shall include the following extensions: 

(A) Contractual Liability; ( B) Products and 
Completed Operations; ( C) Independent 
Contractors Coverage; (D) Broad Form General 
Liability Extensions or equivalent; (E) 
Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and 
Underground (F) Exclusions, if applicable. 

3. Motor Vehicle Liability: The Ever stream GLC Holding 
Company LLC shall procure and maintain during the life 
of this contract Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, 
including Michigan No Fault Coverages, with limits of 
liability of not less than $1, 000, 000 per occurrence 
combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, 
all non-owned vehicles and all hired vehicles. 

8 

146



4. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and 
Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, 
shall include an endorsement stating the following 
shall be ''Additional Insureds'' with the following 
verbiage: 

"It is understood and agreed that the following shall 
be named as Additional Insureds: The City of Mount 
Clemens, all elected and appointed officials, all 
employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions, 
and/or authorities and board members, including 
employees and volunteers thereof." 

"This coverage 
insureds, and 

shall 
not 

insurance or similar 
additional insureds, 

be primary to the additional 
contributing with any other 
protections available to the 

whether said other available 
coverage be primary, contributing or excess.'' 

5. Cancellation Notice: Worker's Compensation Insurance, 
Commercial General Liability Insurance and Motor 
Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, shall 
include an endorsement stating the following: "Should 
any of the above described policies be cancelled 
before the expiration date thereof, the issuing 
company will mail 30 days written notice to the 
Certificate Holder named below''. 

6. Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Ever stream GLC 
Holding Company LLC shall provide the City of Mount 
Clemens, at the time the contracts are returned by to 
the City for execution, certificates and policies as 
listed below: 

a. Two (2) 
Workers' 

copies of Certificate 
Compensation Insurance; 

of Insurance for 

b. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for 
Commercial General Liability Insurance; 

c. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for 
Vehicle Liability Insurance; 

i. Original Policy, 
pending issuance of 

9 

or original Binder 
policy, for Owner's & 

147



Contractor's 
Insurance; 

Protective Liability 

ii. If so requested, Certified Copies of all 
policies mentioned above will be 
furnished. 

7. Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire 
during the term of this contract, the Everstream GLC 
Holding Company LLC shall deliver renewal certificates 
and/or policies to the City of Mount Clemens at least 
THIRTY (30) days prior to the expiration date. 

NOTE: A sample "Certificate of Insurance" is attached 
for review by the bidders. Certificates of successful 
bidder, shall be in similar form and in an amount 
meeting the requirements indicated above. Questions 
pertaining to any of these documents shall be referred 
to the party indicated in Appendix "B" of these 
contract documents. 

8. Failure to Maintain Insurance: Upon failure of the 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC to obtain or 
maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the 
contract, the City may at its option, purchase such 
coverage to and subtract the cost of obtaining such 
coverage to the Everstream. In obtaining such 
coverage, the City shall have no obligation to procure 
the most cost effective coverage but may contract with 
any insurer for such coverage. 

K. EXAMINATION OF SITE 

It is expected that each bidder shall make a personal 
examination of the entire site of the proposed work and its 
surroundings. Each bidder shall, before offering its proposal, 
have obtained first-hand information concerning any probable 
interference, and the available facilities for transporting, 
handling and storing construction equipment and materials, and 
concerning other conditions which may affect work under the 
Contract. 

L. LEGAL CONDITIONS 

10 

148



Bidders are notified that they are to acquaint th ems elves with 
the various provisions in the Laws of the State of Michigan and 
in the ordinances and regulations of the City of Mount Clemens 
and of Macomb County, with respect to the carrying on of public 
improvements 

M. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES 

Any disputes arising under this Contract shall be settled either 
by commencement of a suit in Macomb County Circuit Court or by 
compulsory arbitration, at the election of the City. If the 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC feels aggrieved, he/she shall 
advise the City of any dispute he/she has arising out of this 
Contract and shall demand that the City elect that the dispute 
is to be resolved by submitting it to compulsory arbitration or 
by the commencement of a suit in the Macomb County Circuit Court 
or any other court having jurisdiction. The City shall make its 
election within 30 days from the receipt of such notice. If the 
City elects to have the dispute resolved by compulsory 
arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 of the 
Revised Judicature Act for the State of Michigan, with each of 
the parties appointing one arbitrator and the two thus appointed 
appointing a third. The Macomb County Circuit Court or any court 
having jurisdiction may render a judgment upon the award of the 
arbitrators. In the event that the City elects not to have the 
matter in dispute arbitrated or fails to make such an election, 
any dispute between the parties may be resolved by the filing of 
a suit in the Macomb County Circuit Court. In the event that the 
City feels aggrieved, it shall elect the method of resolving its 
dispute by either demanding that the matter be arbitrated or by 
filing a suit in the Macomb County Circuit Court. 

N.CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

If subsequent to entering into the Contract, a City official, 
his/her spouse, child or parent shall become directly or 
indirectly interested in the contract, the City shall have the 
right to terminate the contract without further liability if the 
disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days 
after the City has given notification of the disqualifying 
interest. The City official shall have no vote on any issue 
involving the Contract during the thirty (30) day period. 

O.BIDDER'S ABILITY 

11 

149



It is the intention of the City to award the contract for this 
job to a Ever stream GLC Holding Company LLC whose construction 
skill and financial resources are fully equal to the task of 
prosecuting the work in satisfactory manner and of bringing it 
to completion within the specified time limit specified. With 
this end in view, the Form of Proposal may call for at least 
three ( 3) references concerning the ability of the Ever stream 
GLC Holding Company LLC to satisfactorily do this particular 
class of work. The mere ability to offer bonds will not be taken 
as sufficient evidence of the responsibility on the part of the 
bidder. If the Contract is awarded to a foreign company, a 
Certificate of Authority to do business in the State of Michigan 
must accompany the executed contract. Furthermore, the bidder 
shall be required to furnish evidence of his current financial 
status. 

P. PAYMENTS 

Invoices will be paid on a net 30 basis following 
completion of the project. 

NOTE: Ever stream GLC Holding Company LLC shall be required to 
furnish completed "Waiver of Lien" from each su.Ocont::_,actor 
9 n d _,(~~ -----~--~££)- i_:_ 12 _r_- th a t ha s _bee _c - r· 1 1 vecl ir:: ::,L:.e ·v,.J'C.r ,L\ co·1e_reci .b\/ 

Q.RIGHT TO ACCEPT, REJECT AND TO WAIVE DEFECTS 

The City reserves the right to accept any proposal, to reject 
any or all proposals, and to waive any defect, irregularity or 
informality in any proposal if it appears advantageous to the 
City's interests to do so. 

In particular, any alterations, erasure, or 
the Specifications, which are made a part, 
these Instructions, or of the Form of Proposal 
render the accompanying proposal irregular 
rejection by the City. 

12 

interlineation in 
specifically, of 

by a bidder shall 
and subject to 

150



Proposals 
irregular, 

which are clearly unbalanced shall be considered 
and will be subject to rejection by the City. 

R.PAY ITEMS 

as 

Only those i terns listed in the proposal are pay i terns, and any 
other work called for by either plans or specifications is 
classified as incidental, and the cost shall be included in 
other prices bid in the proposal. 

S. PROGRESS SCHEDULE 

The successful bidder shall be required to submit a Progress 
Schedule to the City prior to execution of the Contract by the 
City. The Progress Schedule shall be an outline of the 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC proposed order of work and 
shall indicate the dates for completion of the major items of 
work. 

T.LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CLAUSE 

Time is of the essence of this construction. All of the work to 
be performed by the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall be 
completed on or before the date agreed upon in the contract, 
unless written approval has been granted by the City Manager of 
the City of Mount Clemens (hereinafter indicated as ''City 
Manager") , granting an extension to a specific later date. The 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall pay to the City of 
Mount Clemens as liquidated damages, the sum of $100.00 per day 
for each calendar day following agreed upon completion date, 
that the work to be performed by the Everstream GLC Holding 
Company LLC is not completed. Liquidated damages are established 
because of the difficulty of ascertaining actual damages which 
the City of Mount Clemens might sustain, and not as a penalty. 

U.INTENT OF PLANS' SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT 

The intent of the plans, specifications, and contract are to 
provide for completion of the work in substantial compliance 
with the details as shown thereon and as described herein. The 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall furnish all labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, transportation and necessary 
supplies and shall perform all operations required to complete 
the work in accordance with the specifications, lines, grades 

13 

151



and cross sections provided for on the plans or by authorization 
of the City. 

V.EXTRA WORK 

No extra work shall be started or extra material furnished until 
such extra work or furnishing of extra material is authorized in 
writing by the City Manager. 

The price for such extra work or material must be approved by 
the City Manager. Said price may be a unit price, or a lump sum 
price, as determined by the City Manager. 

W.ALTERATION IN CHARACTER OF WORK 

Should the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC encounter or the 
City Manager encounter, during the progress of the work, sub
surface and/or latent conditions at the site materially 
differing from those shown on the plans or indicated in the 
specifications, the City Manager's attention shall be called to 
such conditions immediately before they are disturbed. The City 
Manager shall thereupon investigate the conditions, and if the 
City Manager finds that they materially differ from those shown 
on the plans, and/or indicated in the specifications, the City 
Manager may make such changes in the plans and/or specifications 
as may be found necessary for completion of the project. 

X.COORDINATION OF SPECIFICATIONS AND PLANS 

In case of discrepancy, written figures shall govern over 
numerals, figured dimensions shall govern over scaled 
dimensions, plans shall govern over standard specifications, 
supplemental specifications shall govern over standard 
specifications and plans, and special provisions govern over 
supplemental specifications. 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall not take advantage 
of any apparent error or omission in the plans or 
specifications, but the City Manager shall be permitted to make 
such corrections and interpretations as may be deemed necessary 
for the fulfillment of the 
intent of the plans and specifications. 

Y.THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

14 

152



Z.AUTHORITY OF CITY MANAGER 

The City Manager shall decide all questions which may arise as 
to the quality and acceptability of materials furnished and work 
performed, and as to the manner of performance and rate of 
progress of the work; all questions which may arise as to the 
interpretation of the plans and specifications; and all 
questions as to the satisfactory and acceptable fulfillment of 
the terms of the Contract by the Everstream. 

AA. INSPECTION 

Inspectors may be appointed by the City Manager to inspect all 
materials used and all work done. The inspection may extend to 
all parts of the work and to the preparation or manufacture of 
the materials used in the work. The Inspectors will not be 
authorized to revoke, alter, enlarge, or relax any of the 
provisions of these specifications, nor to change the plans in 
any part. The inspector of the work will inform the City Manager 
as to the progress of the work, the manner in which it is being 
done, and the quality of the materials used. He will also call 
to the attention of the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC any 
failure to follow the plans and specifications that he/she may 
observe. 

In case of any dispute arising between the Everstream GLC 
Holding Company LLC and the Inspector as to the materials 
furnished or the manner of performing the work, the Inspector 
shall have the authority to reject materials or suspend the work 
until the question at issue can be referred to and be decided by 
the City Manager. In no instance shall any action or omission on 
the part of the Inspector relieve the Everstream GLC Holding 
Company LLC of the responsibility of completing the work in 
accordance with the plans and specifications. 

The City Manager and his/her duly authorized inspector, shall at 
all times have the right to enter the premises upon which the 
work under this Contract is being done, and to inspect the said 
work and to ascertain whether or not the construction is carried 
out in accordance with the terms of the Contract or 
specifications; and the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall 
render all necessary assistance and provide all reasonable 
facilities and give ample time for such inspection. 

15 

153



AB. TIME AND SEQUENCE OF WORK 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall have control over 
the sequence of order of execution of the several parts of the 
work to be done under this Contract, and over the methods of 
accomplishing the required results, except as some particular 
sequence or method may be distinctly demanded by these 
specifications and plans or by the express provisions of the 
Contract. 

AC. CONSTRUCTION STAKES 

The location, alignment, elevations and grades of the work will 
be determined by the City, which shall set such stakes as are 
necessary to properly mark these elements. The Ever stream GLC 
Holding Company LLC shall assume full responsibility for detail 
dimensions and elevations measured from lines, grades and 
elevations so established. 

The City may require Everstream, at the Everstream's expense, to 
provide such masts, scaffolds, batter-boards, straight-edges, 
templates or other devices as may be necessary to facilitate 
laying out, inspecting and constructing the work. 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall exercise proper 
care in the preservation of all stakes set for use by the 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC or for the use of the City, 
and if such stakes are damaged, lost, or removed by the 
Everstream's operations, the cost of resetting may be charged to 
the Everstream. The City will be responsible for the accuracy of 
lines, slopes and grades established by the City, except that 
the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall not take advantage 
of any obvious errors or omissions. 

AD. MATERIALS FURNISHED BY THE CITY 

The City may, at its discretion, furnish to the Everstream, any 
materials or supplies or transportation required for extra work, 
and the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall not be entitled 
to any allowance or percentage on account of materials or 
supplies or transportation so furnished. 

AE. STORED MATERIALS 

16 

154



Materials and equipment distributed, stored or placed upon or 
near the site of the work shall be at all times so disposed as 
not to interfere with the work being prosecuted by the City or 
by other Contractors in the City's employ. Such material shall 
be stored in such a manner as to facilitate inspection. 

AF. REJECTED MATERIALS 

If any materials used in the work or brought upon the ground, or 
selected for use in the work, shall be condemned by the City on 
account of bad or improper workmanship, or as being unsuitable 
or not in conformity with the specifications, the Everstream GLC 
Holding Company LLC shall forthwith remove from the work or its 
vicinity, without delay, all such rejected or condemned material 
of whatever kind. Upon failure to do so within forty-eight (48) 
hours after having been so directed by the City Manager, the 
condemned material may be removed by the City and the cost of 
said removal deducted from any money that is then due or that 
may thereafter become due to the Everstream. No payment shall be 
made until such material, work or workmanship has been removed 
and proper materials and workmanship substituted therefore. 

AG. REMOVAL OF MATERIALS 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall be responsible for 
the removal of the building in question together with any and 
all existing materials to a licensed landfill site. In the case 
of a complete demolition, this shall include removal of an 
footings, basement floors, concrete or asphalt driveway, any 
concrete, asphalt or brick pad or foundations of the property 
and sidewalks, other than the public sidewalk. Everstream GLC 
Holding Company LLC is responsible for removal of all debris 
located on the site. 

AH. WATER SUPPLY 

Water for construction purposes may be taken from the City 
mains, at no charge, subject to the rules of the City's Water 
and/or Fire Departments and upon advance approval of same. 

AI. SEWER LEADS 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall be responsible for 
the capping of any sanitary sewer leads located at the property 
line. 

17 

155



AJ. SANITARY REGULATIONS 

Necessary conveniences, properly secluded from the public 
observation, shall be constructed where needed for the use of 
workers on the site. Such conveniences shall be located, 
constructed and maintained, subject to the approval of the City 
and the collections therein shall be removed at such times and 
to such places as it may direct. The Ever stream GLC Holding 
Company LLC shall obey and enforce such sanitary regulations as 
may be prescribed by the County Health Department. 

AK. BUILDINGS AND OTHER STRUCTURES ENCOUNTERED 

Full responsibility shall be assumed by the Everstream GLC 
Holding Company LLC for the protection of all buildings and 
other structures, public or private, including tracks, 
pavements, driveways, curbs, poles, signs, hydrants, underground 
pipes and conduits, catch-basins, man-holes and other structures 
of every sort that may be encountered in or adjacent to the 
work. 

AL. PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall be responsible for 
the restoration of the property. This shall include, but is not 
limited to, grading the property to a finish grade as 
established by the City Inspector and completing all backfill 
with clean fill dirt. When complete, the property shall be level 
and clear of all debris. 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall restore, at his/her 
own expense, any and all public or private property damaged or 
injured in consequence of any act or omission on its part or on 
the part of its employees or agents, to a condition similar and 
equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done. If 
the Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC neglects to repair or 
make restoration, the City may after forty-eight (48) hours 
written notice to the Everstream, proceed to make such repairs 
or restoration, and will deduct the cost thereof from any monies 
that are or may become due to Everstream. 

AM. RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE TO WORK 

18 

156



The Ever stream GLC Holding Company LLC shall protect its work 
and materials from damage due to the nature of the work, action 
of the elements, carelessness of other Contractors or general 
public, or from any cause whatever, until completion and 
acceptance of the work by the City. Should any damage occur, the 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall repair or replace it at 
its own expense, and complete the work to the satisfaction of 
the City. 

AN. PUBLIC SAFETY 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall furnish, erect, and 
maintain a good and sufficient fence, railing, or barrier around 
all exposed portions of its work to effectively prevent any 
accident in consequence of the project operations and to protect 
the work from damage. When equipment and materials are located 
within any public right-of-way, the public shall be safe-guarded 
by suitable and sufficient signs, lights, barricades or other 
means furnished and maintained by the Everstream. 

If any portion of the work is not properly barricaded, signed or 
lighted by one-half (~) hour after sunset, the necessary 
barricades, signs, and lights may be placed by the City and all 
costs to the City for such work will be charged to the 
Everstream. The furnishing, erection and maintenance of 
barricades, signs and lights by the City shall not relieve the 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC of its responsibility for the 
protection of the public, pedestrian or vehicular traffic and 
the work. 

AO. NOTIFICATION TO UTILITIES 

The Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall notify all 
utilities of its intention to excavate or otherwise cause any 
underground disturbance, by calling MISS DIG at least two (2) 
full working days before commencing such excavation or 
disturbance. 

The rights are reserved to both the City and to the owners of 
public utilities or franchisees to enter upon the work for the 
purpose of making repairs to their installations and making 
changes in their installations necessitated by the work. 

AP. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY WORK 

19 

157



No work shall be done on Sundays or upon any days celebrated as 
Holidays by the City of Mount Clemens, except in case of 
emergency or to protect work from damage or injury to the 
public, without advance written request and approval by the City 
Manager of the City of Mount Clemens. In the event such 
permission is requested and approved, the sound decibel levels, 
as contained in Section 15. 0961 Mount Clemens City Code which 
provides for decibel limits based upon zoning classification. 

AQ. NIGHT WORK 

No work shall be carried on between the hours of 6: 00 p. m. to 
7: 00 a .m., except in case of emergency or to protect the work 
from damage or injury to the public work that has already been 
done, without advance written request and approval by the City 
Manager of the City of Mount Clemens. 

AR. UNNOTICED DEFECTS 

Any defective work or material that may be discovered by the 
City before the final acceptance of the work, or before final 
payment has been made to Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC by 
the City, defects shall be removed and replaced by work and 
material which conforms to the specifications. Failure or 
neglect on the part of the City to condemn or reject bad or 
inferior work or materials shall not be construed to imply 
acceptance of such work or materials. 

AS. USE OF PROJECT FOR CITY AS PROMOTIONAL TOOL 

Mount Clemens" or implication that work 
Contract or Agreement indicates support 

Use of the name "City of 
under the terms of this 
of the City of Mount 
advertising media shall 
permission of the City. 
the terms of the Contract 

Clemens for Everstream, through any 
not be done without the advance written 

Doing so shall constitute a breach of 
or Agreement. 

AT. FINAL INSPECTION 

As soon as practicable after the completion of all work covered 
by the Contract, the City Manager shall make the final 
inspection of the work. If the work is found to comply with all 
the terms of the Contract, plans and specifications, the City 

20 

158



Manager shall 
promptness. 

accept the completed work with reasonable 

If the work is not acceptable to the City Manager at the time of 
such inspection, he shall advise Everstream GLC Holding Company 
LLC as to the particular defects to be remedied before final 
acceptance. 

If within a period of ten (10) days after such notification, 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC has not taken steps to 
speedily complete the work as outlined by the City Manager, the 
City Manager may, without further notice to Everstream GLC 
Holding Company LLC and without in any way impairing the 
Contract, make such arrangements as may be deemed necessary to 
have the work completed in a satisfactory manner. The cost of so 
completing the work may be deducted from any monies due or which 
may become due to Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC, use by the 
City of all or any part of the work before acceptance shall not 
be construed as acceptance of the part under dispute. 

21 

159



Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC 
& 

CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS, MICHIGAN 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of August, 
2016, by and between the City of Mount Clemens, a municipal 
corporation, in the County of Macomb and the State of Michigan, 
herein referred to as the CITY, and Everstream GLC Holding 
Company LLC, located at 1228 Euclid Ave. Suite 250 Cleveland, OH 
44115, herein after referred to as the Everstream. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS the CITY has heretofore advertised 
located at 

corporate limits of the City of Mount Clemens, 
therewith has prepared certain instructions 
specifications, and 

for bids for a 
within the 

and in connection 
to bidders and 

WHEREAS the EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC has made a bid in 
accordance with such advertisement, in the amount of 

$ for 
description of project) 
and which bid has been accepted by the CITY. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual 
undertakings of the parties hereto, all as hereinafter set 
forth, it is agreed by and between said parties as follows: 

1. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties that the 
documents consisting of advertisement for bids, 
Instructions to Bidders, general specifications, bid 
proposal, Bid Bond, Contract, Performance Bond, Plans and 
other documents mentioned in connection with the award of 
the bid for this project and the EVERSTREAM'S bid shall be 
incorporated herein by reference, and shall become a part 
of this contract, and shall be binding upon both parties 
hereto. If any of the documents are in conflict with 
another, the general specifications shall take precedence. 

2. The EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC agrees that it will 
apply for and secure all permits and approvals as may be 
required from the City of Mount Clemens in accordance with 
the provisions of applicable ordinances of said CITY, State 
of Michigan or federal agencies. 

22 

160



3. The CITY agrees it will, upon satisfactory performance of 
construction under provisions of this contract, and 
applicable ordinances of the City of Mount Clemens, pay to 
the EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC the amounts 
specified in its proposal. 

4. To the fullest extent permitted by law, EVERSTREAM GLC 
HOLDING COMPANY LLC agrees to defend and hold harmless the 
CITY, its several departments, agents, and employees in 
connection with the performance of its duties hereunder, 
and agrees to secure and keep in force at EVERSTREAM'S 
expense, public liability insurance, property damage 
insurance, Worker's Compensation insurance, Builder's Risk 
Insurance and Michigan No-Fault insurance, all as required 
under the instructions to bidders and general 
specifications. The CITY shall be named as an insured on 
all policies of insurance. EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY 
LLC shall provide a Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
coverage of all special insurance to the CITY prior to 
initiation of the terms of this agreement. 

5. EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC has filed with the CITY 
a Performance Bond or Irrevocable Letter of Credit for the 
term of the contract or agreement and said bond or letter 
of credit is incorporated herein by reference, and made a 
part of the contract or agreement. Further such surety or 
bonding company is acceptable to the CITY and is executed 
on the form provided by the CITY. 

6. If EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC fails to perform its 
obligations hereunder, the CITY may take any and all 
remedial actions provided by the general specifications or 
otherwise permitted by law. 

7. EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC shall hire personnel of 
good character and fitness to perform the duties under this 
agreement. EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC shall, when 
applicable, comply with the requirements of all Federal, 
State and local laws and ordinances and regulations 
relating to minimum wages, social security, unemployment 
compensation insurance, and Worker's Compensation, and will 
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, sex, creed, color or national 
origin. 

23 

161



8. Nothing contained in this agreement shall be held to 
constitute the parties hereto as partners, nor authorize 
either of said parties to contract any debt, liability or 
obligation for or against or on behalf of the other party 
to the agreement, other than as specifically stated herein. 
Neither the CITY nor the EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC 
shall be considered or construed as the agent of the other 
nor shall either have the right to bind the other in any 
manner whatsoever, and this agreement shall not be 
construed as a contract of agency. 

9. EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC shall be, throughout the 
term of this agreement, an independent Contractor, and as 
such shall be liable for its own actions and neither 
EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY LLC nor its employees shall 
be construed as employees of the CITY. 

10. If subsequent to entering into the contract a CITY official, 
his or her spouse, child or parent, shall become directly or 
indirectly interested in the contract, the CITY shall have 
the right to terminate the contract without further 
liability if the disqualification has not been removed 
within thirty (30) days after the CITY has given 
notification of the disqualifying interest. The CITY 
official shall have no vote on any issue involving the 
contract during the thirty (30) day period. 

11. Any disputes arising under this Contract shall be settled 
either by commencement of a suit in Macomb County Circuit 
Court or by compulsory arbitration, at the election of the 
City. If Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC feels aggrieved, 
Everstream GLC Holding Company LLC shall advise the City, in 
writing of any dispute arising out of this Contract and 
shall demand that the City elect that the dispute is to be 
resolved by submitting it to compulsory arbitration or by 
the commencement of a suit in the Macomb County Circuit 
Court or any other court having jurisdiction. The City shall 
make its election within 30 days from the receipt of such 
notice. 

If the City elects to have the 
compulsory arbitration, it shall be 
Chapter 50 of the Revised Judicature 
Michigan, with each of the parties 

24 

dispute resolved 
settled pursuant 

Act for the State 
appointing one 

by 
to 
of 

( 1) 

162



arbitrator and the two (2) thus appointed appointing a 
third. The Macomb County Circuit Court or any court having 
jurisdiction may render a judgment upon the award of the 
arbitrators. 

In the event that the City elects not to have the matter in 
dispute arbitrated or fails to make such an election, any 
dispute between the parties may be resolved by the filing 
of a suit in Macomb County Circuit Court. In the event that 
the City feels aggrieved, it shall elect the method of 
resolving its dispute by either demanding that the matter 
be arbitrated or by filing a suit in the Macomb County 
Circuit Court. 

12. Any contract awarded pursuant to any bid shall not be 
binding upon the City until a written contract has been 
executed by both parties and EVERSTREAM GLC HOLDING COMPANY 
LLC is in receipt City-issued Purchase Order covering the 
project indicated on the Request for Proposals. 

13. This agreement shall be binding upon, and apply and insure 
to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective 
successors or assigns. 

********************************** 

25 

163



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement. 

CITY OF MOUNT CLEMENS: 
Witness: 

Barb Dempsey, Mayor 

Witness: 

Lisa Borgacz, City Clerk 

EVERSTREAM GLC Holding Company LLC: 
Witness: 

Witness: 

APPROVED: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF 
FUNDS: 

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 

26 

By: 
Its: 

Legal Counsel 

Director of Finance 

City Manager 

164



TM 

1228 Euclid Ave. Suite 250 
Cleveland, OH 44115 

KNOW ALL 
PERFORMANCE BOND 

THESE PRESENT, that we, the undersigned: MEN BY 
GLC Holding Company LLC as Principal, and 

as Sureties, are hereby held and 
firmly bound unto the CITY OF Mount Clemens, MICHIGAN in the sum 
of Dollars ( $ ) in lawful 
money of the United States, for the payment of which we hereby 
jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns this day August, 
2016. 

Ever stream 

WHEREAS, the above bounded Principal has entered into a certain 
written contract with the above named City of Mount Clemens, 
Michigan dated day of August, 2016, for the purpose of 

which contract is 
hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the 
same extent as if the same were entirely written herein, 

AND THE SAID SURETY, for value received, hereby stipulates and 
agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition 
to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed 
thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in 
anyway affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby 
waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration 
or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to 
the specifications. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the conditions of the above obligation is such 
that if the Principal shall fully perform the annexed contract 
according to the terms thereof, or as such terms may be changed 
or modified by mutual agreement, and shall guarantee all work 
furnished against all defects and incidental damage to other 
property for a period of one (1) year following final acceptance 
of the work, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the 
same shall remain in full force and effect. 

This bond is provided in compliance with and subject to the 
provisions of Act 213 of the Public Acts of Michigan for 1963, 
as amended by Act 351 of the Public Acts of Michigan for 1972. 

Witnessed: 

27 

165



Principal 

28 

166



 

 

EXPLANATION OF AGENDA – September 6, 2016 

 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor Barb Dempsey and 

  All City Commissioners 

 

FROM: Lisa Borgacz, Interim City Manager 

 

DATE: August 31, 2016 

 

RE:  Report from the City Manager’s Office 

 

 

 

1. Refuse Pick Up:  A reminder that refuse pickup will run one day behind schedule 

from September 5 through September 9, 2016.  

 

2. Pancake Breakfast:  The 16th Annual Soap Box Derby Pancake Breakfast will be 

held on Saturday, September 10, 2016 from 7:30 a.m. until 11:00 a.m. at the Mount 

Clemens Fire Department.  Adults are $5, Seniors $4, and children 11 and under 

$3.  Proceeds will be donated to the family of fallen Harrison Township Firefighter, 

Andrew “Moose” Russell.  Please come and support this worthwhile cause. 

 

3. Mount Clemens Grand Prix:  The Annual Soap Box Derby Race will take place on 

Saturday, September 10, 2016, weather pending, at 10 a.m. on the Crocker Bridge.  

For more information, please contact 586.468.7746. 

 

4. Farmers Market:  The Farmers Market on North River Road will be hosting their 

annual Tater/Pork Roast on Saturday, September 17, 2016 from 9 a.m. until it is 

sold out.  The market will be open from 7 a.m. until 1 p.m.  For additional 

information, please contact the Macomb County Chamber at 586.493.7600.  

 

5. Mount Clemens Parks and Recreation Plan: The City will be starting the process of 

preparing a new Parks and Recreation Plan.  Residents should visit the City website 

for an opportunity to learn about the project and take part in an online survey to 

provide input on the new Plan.  A Facebook page has also been created for the 

project at www.facebook.com/CityofMountClemens/.  Additional public outreach 

efforts will be conducted throughout the City over the course of the project. 

 

167

http://www.facebook.com/CityofMountClemens/

	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	General Business
	9-A - Approval of Resolution Adopting the Proposed Master Plan Update
	9-A - Attachment 1
	9-A - Resolution
	9-A - Attachment 2
	9-A - Attachment 3
	9-B - Approve Purchases and Payments
	9-B - Attachment 1
	9-B - Attachment 2
	9-B - Attachment 3
	9-B - Attachment 4
	City Manager's Report



